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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the
Company for the year ended on 31st March, 2018,

(Amount in Rs.in lacs}

Stand-aione Consolidated
FINANCIAL RESULTS Current year Previous year Current year Previous year
Turnover 7546 €873 7646 6873
EBIDTA 829 837 828 838
Finance Cost 509 672 509 672
Depreciation 103 99 103 99
Net Tax Provisions 63 18 63 17
Profit after tax 154 49 153 438
Other Comprehensive income (10} {9} (10} {9
Total Comprehensive Income 143 39 142 38

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
We are pleaged to report an all-round growth in the affairs of the Company.

Sales of SUPER PHOSPHATE Fertiliser, both Powder and Granulated together was at 65846 MT, an increase of
17 % over previous year from 56563 MT. Similarly, turnover of the Company aiso increased to Rs.7548 lacs, an
increase of 10% over previous year from Rs.6873 lacs.

Major ratiomatisation of seliing price became effective with the introduction of Goods & Service Tax (GST) from
July 2017

EBIDTA of the Company is more or less at same level of Rs.829 lacs in current year compared o Rs.837 iacs
in previous year

Better working capitat management, certain low cost borrowing and less delay in the disbursal of Subsidy from
Central Government helped the Company to save Rs.183 lacs in Finance Cost during the year.

On making .Provision for Depreciation, Income Tax {Current & Deferred), the Company sarnad a Profit after Tax
of Rs 1564 lacs in current year in comparison Rs.49 lacs in previous year

Afier adjusting Other Comprehensive income, Total Comprehensive income for the year stood at Rs.143 lacs in
current year compared to Rs.39 lacs in previous year on standaione basis.
OUTLOOK

World over price of commodities led by crude oil is increasing. Looking to the trend of increasing prices.
Government of India has increased subsidy by 26% from Rs.2166 PMT of Super Phosphate sold in 2017-18 to
Rs.2734 PMT fur lhe year 2018-19.

Monsoon is expected to be normat as per long range forecast predicted by Indian Meteorological Department (IMD)
and by Skymet

Government of India in its vision of doubling farm income has increased Minimum Support Price (MSP) of all major
crops at a level of 1.5 times of Farmers cost

These measures should auger well for the Company.

=]

For The Phosphate Co. Lud.

Shankar Banerjee
Company 3esrelary
ACS-450673




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
ACGOUNTING STANDARD

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (referred to as 'Ind AS') with effect from April 1, 2016 and
accordingly these financial results along with the comparatives have been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles stated therein, prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
("Act”) read with the relevant Rules framed thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted
in India.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M/s Abhinandan Goods Pvt. Lid. is the wholly owned subsidiary of your Company. Particulars of subsidiary
company is presented in Form AOC-1 as per Annexure — D forming a part of the Direclors Report.

The annual financial statements of the subsidiary and related detailed information are kept at the Registered Office
of the Company and also at the registered office of the subsidiary company, and will be available to investors
seeking information at any time.

CREDIT RATING

Latest Credit Rating has been carried by India Ratings In May 2018 which 15 vaiid for one year and thereafter
subjected to annual surveillance. The Company's Bank Loan Rating has improved consistently as follows:

Particuiars Based on Based on Based on
financials of financiale of financials of
FY.2014-15 FY.2015-16 FY.2016-17
& issyed in & issued in & issued in
Nov. 201§ Jan. 2017 May. 2018

Long Term Rating B BB BB

Short term Rating e o . S .

DIVIDEND

To conserve the resources, no dividend is proposed by the Company.
TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERYES

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserve.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management discussion and analysis, comprising details of the overview, industry structure and development of
the. Company is appended and forms an integral part of the Director's Report

SHARE CAPITAL
There has been no aiteration of share capitai during the year

The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2018 was Rs.360.75 lacs. During the year under review, the
Company has not issued any shares. The Company has not issued shares with deferential veting rights. it has
neither issued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have any scheme to fund its
employees lo pwchase the shares of the Company. However, the Gompany has secured an approval from the
members to issue Compulsorily Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares on Preferential Basis.

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE

Your Company deals in a single business segment of FARM inputs and all its business revoives around the same.

DIRECTORS
There has been no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the year under review.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Shri Binod Khaitan (DIN: 00128502) retires by rotation and is eligible for re-appointment.

Particulars of the Directors seeking appaintment / re-appeintment are appended in the notes forming part of the
notice for the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

WOMAN DIRECTOR

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Quafification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mrs. Vijaya Mohan (DIN' 02474421} as Director and she is
on the Board of the Company, since 11th November 2014

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur, Executive Director/CEQ (DIN:00040862), Shri Ajay Bangur, President/CFQ
(PAN:ADRPBS5699N) and Shri Shankar Banerjee (ACS 45073) Dy. Company Secretary of the Company are the Key
Managerial Parsonnel of the Company.

The tenure of Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur as Executive Director/CEQ expires on 11th August 2018 Approval of
the members is being sought for re-appointment of Shri Bangur as Executive DirectorfCEQ at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Your Board of Directors met & times during the financial year 2017-18. The dates are 25th May 2017, 18th August
2017, Bth November 2017, 15th January 2018 13th February 2018 & 19th March 2018. Intervening gap between
two meetings is within the time limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In terms of Section 134 (5} of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the appiicable accounting standards have been followed.

b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent sc as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under
review.

¢} The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e} The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financlal controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

fy The directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systemn are adequate and operating effectively.
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

Al independent Directors hold office for a fixed period of five years and are not rable to retwe by rotation. The
Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet
the criteriz of independence as preseribed under Section 149(8) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Regulation
16(1)(b} of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The terms of appointment of Independent Directors are available in the
Company's website.

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES

in adherence of section 178{1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your Company in its Meeting

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

heid on _mn M_ay_ 2014, approved a policy on directors’ appountment and remuneration inctuding critena for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a direstor and other matters provided ufs 178(3},
based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Gommittee. The broad parameters covered
under the Policy are —

Company Philosophy, Guiding Principles, Nomination of Directors, Remuneration of Directors, Nomination and
Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personne! (other than Managing/ Whele-time Directors), Key-Executives and
Senior Management and the Remuneration of Other Employees. The Company's Policy relating to appointment of
Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
Direclors and other selaled matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is furnished
in Annexure=C and forms part of this Report.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

Pursuant 1o the provisions of section 134(3){p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Regulations of the SEBI
(Listing Obkgations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for
evaluating its performance and as well as that of its Committees and Individual Directors The exercise was carmed
out through a structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Boards functioning such as
composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations,
governance issues etc.

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and that of the Non-Independent
Directors were carried out by the independent Directors.

The Directors were satisfired with the evaluetion results, which reflected the overall engagement and effectiveness
of the Board and its Committees with the Company

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & ADEQUACY

Your Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of operations.
Te maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Cammittee.
The fnternal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company.
its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based
on the report of internal auditor, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations atong with comective actions thereon
are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board for #ts direction

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Your Company has not entered into any transactions within the purview of Section 186 of the Companies Act
2013.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sectioh 73 of the Companles Act, 2013 and
the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014

HUMAN RESOURCES

As on March 31, 2018 your company had 52 permanent employees. The company acknowledges the importance
of human value and ensures that proper encouragement both moral and financial is extended to employees to

metivate them. The company maintained cordial relationship with workers and staff dusing the year. Particulars
of employees required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of Companies
{(Maragement and Admimistration) Rules 2014 is annexed in Amexure G and forms an integrat part of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered inte during the financial year were on arm's length basis and were
in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party tramsactions made by the
company with Promoters. Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential

=]
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

oonr_llctlng interest with your company at large. A statemem of all Related Party Transactigns 15 plaged before the
Auz_i:t Committee for its review, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions. The
policy on related party transaction, as approved by the Board, is uploaded on the Company's website. Details
of the transactions with Related Parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and is subsidrary, which forms a part of the Annual Financial
Statements, have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of section 123/ of the Companies Act 2013,
The salient features of the Financtal Statement including details of performance and financial position of the
Subsidiary Company is presented in the prescribed format in Form ACC-1 as per Annexure-D forming a parnt of
the Director's Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct, adopted by your Board of Direclors, is applicable to Directors, senior management and
empioyees of the Company The Code is derived from three interlinked fundamental principles, viz good corporate
governance, good corporate citizenship and exemplary personal conduct in refation to the Company's business
and reputation. The Code covers commitment to responsibility and sustainable development, concern for occupational
health, safety and environment, a gender friendly workplace, transparency and auditability, legal compliance and
the philesophy of leading by personal example.

VIGIL MECHANISM & WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company has in place a mbust vigil mechanism for reporting genuine concemns through the Company's
whistle biower policy to deal with fraud or mismanagement, if any. The Policy ensures that strict confidentiality
be maintained whilst deating with concerns and that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for a
genuinely raised concern.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Your Company's Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 2015, approved by the Board of Directors,
inter alia, prohibits purchase or sale of securities of the Company by Directors and employees while in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The shares of your Company are being traded in electronic fotrm and the Company has established connectivity
with both the depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) with ISIN: INE398C01016. SEBI{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) {Fourth Amendment)
Reguiations, 2018 notified in Gazette of india on 8th June, 2018, has made transfer of securities compulsorily in
dematerialised form we.f Sth December 2018, Sharehoiders holding sharea in physical segment are therefore
advised to get their shares dematerialised immediately, if not done already As on March 31, 2018 93 76% of the

share capital stands dematerialized.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and its obiigations
are not applicable to your Company as it is neither having net werth of Rupees Five Hundred Crore or more, or
tumover of Rupees Cne Thousand Crore or more or a net profit of Rupees Five Crore or more during any financial
year

INSURANCE
All the properties of your Company are adequately insured.
STATUTORY AUDITOR & AUDIT REPORT

M/s S.K Agrawal & Co., Charered Accountants (F.R.No.305158E), were appointed as the Statutery Auditors of

the Company at the 65th AGM  of the Company. The appointment was for a term of § {five) consecutive years
from the conciusion of 68th AGM till the conclusion of 74th AGM of the Company subject to ratification of the

Eor The Phosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

members at ez?cn Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the proposal to ratify their appointment forms pant of the
Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

It is to be_noted that the C_ompanies (Amendment) Act, 2017 has omitted the provision for seeking ratification of
such appointment at every intervening AGM. However, as a cautionary measure, members approval for ratification
of such appointment has been sought in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Notes on financial statements referred to in Auditors Report are seil-expianatory ard do not call for any further
comments

COST AUDITOR & COST AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
your Company is required to have its cost records audited by a Cost Accountant in practice. The Board of
Directors, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s. S Gupta &
Co., Cost Accountants (F.RNo.Q00020) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending March
31, 2018. Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act, read with Rule 14{a)ii) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, ratification of the remuneration of Cost Auditors is being sought from the Members of the Company at the
ensuing AGM. The detaits of the same are provided in the Notice convening the AGM.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Your Directors have appointed M/s Batliboi Purohit & Darbari, Chartered Accountants, (F.R.No.303086E), as Intemal
Auditor for the financial year ending 31st March, 2019

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In comphance wilh the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managenal Fersonnei) Rules, 2014, the Board of Diectors, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
has approved the appeintment of CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal, Proprietor of M/s Agarwal A & Associates, Company
Secretaries in Whote-time-Practice [C.P. No. 13493 (FCS-7604)], as the Secretariai Auditor of the Company for the
Financial Year enging March 31, 2019. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2018,
in Form MR-3, forms an integral part of this report and is annexed herewith as Annexure : ‘H'.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, comprises 3 (Three) Members, namely Smi. Vijaya
Mohan, Shr Dilp P Goculdas and Shn Suresh Kumar Bangur, two of them are Independent Directors and one 1s
a Non Independent Executive Director. The Committee met six times in the financial year 2017-18. The Board
accepted all the recommendationa of the Audit Committee during the year.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Your Company has a duly constituted stakeholder's relatiorship committee. One meeting of the Committee has been
held dunng the year.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9 forms part of the Board's Report and is annexed herewith
as Annexure - F.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to section 134 (3) {n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Direciors of the company regularly
evaluates its associated business risks It has an elshorate risk management procedure in place and systematic
approach to mitigate risk associated with accomplishment of objectives and operations. At present it has not
dentified any eiement of nsk threatening existence of the company in dealing with agre input products.

This robust Risk Management framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on business
objectives and enhance the Company's competitive advantage.

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

The internal Audd Department 1S responsible for fagutating coongination with the heads of vanous Departments,
with respect to the process of identifying key risks associated with the business, manner of handling risks,
adequacy of mitigating factors and recommending corrective action.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There was no amount lying unclaimed! unpaid with the Company for transfer to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund pursuant te the provisions of 124§} of the Companies Act 2013.

ENERGY CONSERVATIGN, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO AND
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Energy Conservation

a} Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are conducted in the manner whereby optimum utilisation
of energy is achieved.

b) No specific investment has been made towards reduction in energy consumption.

c) Impact of conservation and optmum ubhsation of energy are nol readily ascertainable and as such its impact
on cost cannct be stated absolutely.

Technology Absorption

Company's products ara manufactured by adopting the available contemporary technology. The Company constantly
strives for maintenance in quality of its products and entire Research & Development activities are directed to
achieve the aforeszid goal

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Ouigo
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Foreign Exchange Earnings g Ni

Foreign Exchange Cutgo
- Purchase of Raw materials Rs.2872,04,717 Rs. 16,92.58.877

Particulars of Employees

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are provided by way of Annexure G

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / STATUTORY AUTHORITIES

The Company has filed a writ-petifion with Honorabie High Court at Kolkata chalfenging the constitutional validity
of West Bengal Tax on Entry of Goods into Local Areas Act. 2012 Consequently. Court has granted stay for
payment andfor recovery of such Tax.

The Company has preferred an appeal before Honorable High Court at Kolkata against dismissal of writ petition
eartier filed by the Company for recovery of Freight Rebate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

in terms of Reg. 15 of SEB! {Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requiremnent} Reguiation 2015, Corporate Governance
i not applicable to your Company

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes or commitments ocourring after 31st March 2018 affecting the financial position
of the Company requiring disclosure.

For The Pnssphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has always believed in providing a conducive work environment devoid of discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment. Your Company has a well formulated Policy on Prevention & Redressal
of Sexual Harassment. The objective of the policy is to prohibit, prevent and address issues of sexual harassment
at the workplace. This policy has striven to prescribe a code of conduct for the employees. The policy covers
all employees,. imespective of their nature of employment and also applicable in respect of all allegations of sexual
harassment made by an outsider against an employee. During the year 2017-18, no case of Sexual Harassment
was reported.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS:

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditers under Section 143 of the Act read with
relevant Rules framed thereunder either to the Company or to the Central Government,

OTHER DISCLOSURES

The Company has proper and adequate systems and processes in place to ensure compliance with all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

There has been no change in the nature of business.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board places on record its appreciation for the sustained co-operation and support bestowed to your
Company by customers, vendors, regulators, banks, financial institutions, rating agencles, stock exchanges and
deposilofies, auditors, advisors, consultants, associates and all the empioyees for their helping hand, coaperation
and dedicated werk. The Board deepty acknowledges the trust and confidence placed on the Company and alt
its shareholders.

On behaif of the Board of Directors
For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Kolkata {Suresh Kumar Bangur) {Binod Khaitan)
Dated. August 08, August 2018 Executive Director Director
DIN:00040862 DIN:00128502

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statement in the Directors' Report and Management Discussion & Analysis Report describing the Company's
expeclations may be. forward-looking within the meaning of applicable securities Jaws and reguiations. Actual
results may vary materially from those expressed in the statement. important factors that could influence the
Company's operation inciude global and domestic demand and supply condltions affecting selling prices, new
capacity additions, availability of critical materials and their costs, changes in government policies and tax iaws,
economic davelopment of the country and such other factors which are material to the busingss of the Company.

The Company assumes ho respensibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on
the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Industry review:

Agriculture is the third largest sector of Indian Economy, which contributes around 17% of total GDP of the Country.
Fertilizer Industry, with the emerging scénario, plays vital role in the growth of Agriculture Sector.

Last year was a good year for the domestic Fertiliser indusiry, which benefitted from demand revival
due to near normal south west monsoon, lower channel stock, stable raw material prices and exchange
rates. As a resuft, all the Fertiliser Segments have shown growth in 2017-18.

Government Policy

a. In order to address balanced nutrition and improve soil health, Government is  systematically
rationalizing consumption of Urea fertilisers. Towards this, marketing of slow release Neem Coated
Urea was made mandatory from 2016-17. During 2017-18, Government mandaled the Urea companies
to introduce 45 Kg bag of urea in place of existing 50 Kg bags, which is likely tc moderate
oonsumption.

b. Government has Ingreased subsidy on Single Super Phosphate Fertiiser from Rs 2166 per ton in 2017-18
to Rs.2734 per ton in 2018-19.

Review of the Company
3. Performance:

The Company produced 65328 MTs of Green Super Phesphate fertiliser during the year compared to 53883
MTs in previous year. Company sold 65946 MTs of Single Super Phosphate {Powder + Granulated) Fertiliser during
the year compared to 56563 MTs in previous year.

The Company eamed a Total Comprehensive Income of Rs.143 facs after making alf provisions and tax compared
to Total Comprehensive income of Re.32 lacs in previous year.

b. Others:

i  The Company organised camps at its office and at Dealers places to facilitate registration under GST Act
by Fertiliser Dealers and Retailers.

i. ©On the direction of Government of India, the Company distributed 71 number of Point of Sale (POS) machines
free of cost (FOC) to different retailers.

Opportunities & Risks

Company envisages following Opportunities and Risks io its business.
Opportunities

e« Govemment's focus on improving soil health and promote balanced nutrition.

e Tax reforms introduced under GST to help in eliminating Spurious players, bringing transparency in operations
and benefiting organized players.

« Dotbling farm income by 2022 - Higher Minimum Support Price. price discovery through eiectranic markete
and agriculture 1nsurance to improve disposable income for the farmers and support higher agri inputs usage.

e Policy change in SSP mandating marketers to print brand name of the manufacturers on the bags to promote
quality consciousness among COnNsumers.

Risk
General Risks of Operation, Environment, Human Resource etc. as applicable to every business.

Shewrflao :
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy:

The Company has proper and adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size and scale
of operation to protect all its assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all transactions
are authorized, recorded and reported in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal

Controis are also reviewed by the Internal Auditor.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

The Financial Statements have been prepared as per IND-AS in conformity with the applicable accounting
standards with proper explanations justifying the cause of any deviation wherever occurred. The notes
to the financial statements read with the auditors reports both stand-alone and consolidated give the
necessary disclosure of all the relevant accounting treatments in the financial statements appendad with
the Director's Report.

Cautionary Statement:

Statement in this management discussion and analysis describing the Company's objectives, projection,
estimates and expectations may be ‘forward looking statemants’ within the meaning of applicable taws
and regulations. Actual results may differ from those expressed or implied as many factors like,
availability of raw materials, changes in political and economic environment in India, applicable Statutes,
Labour Relations and Interest Costs etc., may affect the company’s operations.

For The Phosphate Cu. Lk

Shankar Ranerjee
Company S‘acretary
ACH-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure B

Discloeure Pursuant to Schedule V of SEBI Listing Obligation and Disclosure Raquirement) Regulation 2045
A Related Party Disclosures

Compliance of Accounting Standards.

Sl in the Accounts Particulars Year end Maxmum amount
No. of balance outstanding
during the year

1 Holding Comparty Loans and Advance

to Subsidiary Company Nl N
2 Subsidiary Company Loans and Advance to

Holding Company Nil Nil
2l Holding Company Specified investments Rs. 24 lacs Rs. 24 lacs

N.B. There is a due and maximum due of Rs. 419.35 tacs from subsidiary company against sale

Management Discussion and Analysis

Management discussion and analysis is presented in Annexure forming a part of the Board's Report.

B Disciosure of Accounting Treatment

Financial Statements have been prepared in consonance with the applicable Accounting Standards {Ind. AS).

D. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account! urclaimed suspense accoatt

1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares

in the suspense account lying al the beginning of lhe year NIl
2 Number of shareholders who approached listed entity for

transfer of shares from suspense account during the year Nil
g Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred

from suspense account during the year Nil
4 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares

in the suspense account lying at the end of the year N
§ That the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till

the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares Ni

for The Phosphate Ca. L.

Shevakas 3
Shankar Ranerjce
Company Secistary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure C
POLICY FOR SELECTION & APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS & THEIR REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the Committee) has adopted a policy which, inter alia, deals with the
rmanner of selection of Board of Directors and CEQ & Managing Director and their remuneration.

Critaria of selection of Non Exscutive Directors

The Non Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience go a8 to have a
diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of manufacturing, marketing, finance, taxation, law,
governance and general management In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisty
iteelf with regard to the degree of independence of the Directors in refation to the Company se as to enable the
Board to discharge its function and duties effectively. The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for
appointment as a Director is not disqualified for appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the candidature for
appointment as Director.

i Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields;
ii. Personal, Professional or business standing,
ii.  Diversity of the Board.

In case of re-appointment of Non Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the performance
evaluation of the Director and his engagement level

Remuneration

The Nen Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, and reimbursement of
expenses for participation in the Board meetings. A Non Executive Director shall be entitied to receive sitting fees
for each meeting of the Board attended by him, of such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within
the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014;

CEO & Managing Director - Criteria for selection / appointment

For the purpose of selection of the CEO & MD, the Commitiee shall identify persons of integrity who possess
relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take into consideration
recommendation, if any, received from any member of the Board. The Committee will also ensure that the prospective
incumbent fulfils such other criteria with regard to age and other gqualifications as laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

Remuneration for the CEQ & Managing Direcior

At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the CEC & Managing Director shall be paid such remuneration as may
be mutually agreed between the Company (the Committee and the Board of Directors) and the CEO & Managing
Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The remuneration shall be subject to the
approval/ratification of the Members of the Company in General Meeting. The remuneration of the CEO & Managing
Director comprises only of fixed component The fixed component comprises salary, allowances, perquisites,
amenities and retirement benefits

Remuneration Policy for the Senlor Management Employees

in determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees {i.e. KMPs and Executive Committee Members)
the Committee shatl ensure the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear.

The Managing Director will carry out the individual performance review based on the standard a2ppraisal matrix and
shall take into account the appraisal score card and other factors mentioned herein-above whilst recommending
the annual increment and perfermance incentive to the Committee for its review and approval.

For The Phosphate Co. Luwi.

Chotirtdns B

Shankar Banerjee

Company Sscraiury
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure D
FORM NO. AOC -1

(Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries as on 31-03-2018
Part “A" : Subsidiaries

(Rs. in Lacs)
Sl. No. Particulars Details
1 Name of the subsidiary Abhinandan Goods Private Limited
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary Same reporting period as that of
concerned, if different from the holding Halding Company
company's reporting period
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate Indian Rupee
as on the last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of
foreign subsic}iz_;rigs_. -
4 Share capital 24.00
5 Reserves & Surplus 271
<] Total Assets 952 25
7 Total Liabilities 925.54
8 Investments Nil
g Profit {Loss) before Taxation {1.58)
10 Provision for Taxation {Deferred Tax) {0.41)
11 Profit {Loss} after Taxation (1.17)
12 Proposed dividend Nil
13 % of shareholding 100
14 Date of acquisition of the subsidiary company 26-03-2016
Notes:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations © Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : Nil
Since there are no Associate Company or Joint Venture, the Part B is not applicable
On behalf of the Board of Directors
For The Phosphate Go, Lid.
Kolkata {Suresh Kumar Bangur} (Binod Khaitan)
Dated: August 08, 2017 Executive Director Director
DIN : 00040862 DIN : 00128502

For The Phosphate Co. L.

Showefdas R ea_
Shankar Banerjee
Company Seaisiary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

FORM NO. AGC -2

Annexure E

(Pursuant to clause {h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companles

{Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/amrangements entered intg by the comparny with related parties
referred to in sub section {1} of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction

under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis.
Sl Particulars Details
No.
al Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NE
b} Nature of contracts/arrangementsdtransaction N.A.
c} Duration of the contractsfarrangementsitransaction N.A.
d) Satient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any N.A
e} Justification for entering into such contracts or
amangements or transaclions’ N A,
H Date of approval by the Board NA
a) Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed
in General meeting as required under first proviso o section 188 N.A.
2, Details of contracts or arangements of transactions at Arm's length basis.
Nama of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms Date of Board
related party Contract Contract Approval
Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur Executive Duration Salary/Contribution 10-08-16
Director 3 years to PF etc/Perquisites
Shri Ajay Bangur Chief Financial Nen Salary/Contribution 15-05-14
Officer Contractual o PF ele/Perguisites
Shn Shankar Banerjee Company Non Salary/Contribution 10-08-16
Secretary Gontractual to PF etc/Perquisites
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Lid Rs. 5 facs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 25-05-17
Davendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Ltd Re, 10 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 2505-17
Kettlowedt Buten & Co Lig Rs. 50 tacs Payable on demand o @& 12% 2598-17
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Lid Rs. 5 lacs Fayable on demand iCD @ 12% 25-05-17
Ketllewell Bullen & Co Lid Rs. 50 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 25-05-17
Kherapati Vanijya Lid Rs. 170 lacs | Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 25-05-17

fFor The =hosphate CO- L.d.

Shankar Benerjee

Compay %‘:r:f:-i{:iw
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Name of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms Date of Board
related party Contract Contract Approval
P.D.G.D.Investments &Trading Pvi.Ltd.| Rs. 50 lacs Payable on demand iCh @ 12% 25-08-17
Kettiowsll Bullen & Co Lid Rs. 40 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 25-05-17
Art Finance & Trads Pvt Lid. Rs 5 laca Payable on demand ICO @ 12% 25-05-17
Devendra Finvast & Holding Pvt Ltd Rs. § lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 250517
Gloster Limited Rs. 500 facs § Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 25-06-17
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Ltd Rs. 32 lacs Payable on demand 0 @ 12% 18.08-17
Davendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Lid Rs. 3 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 18-08-17
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pt Lid Rs 100 lacs Payable on demand Ico @ 12% 18-08-17
Devandra Finvest & Holding Pvt Lid Rs. 15 lacs Payable on demand ICO @ 12% 18-08-17
Kanchan Udyog Ltd Rs. 7 lacs Payable on demand ICO @ 12% 18-08-17
Devendra Finvest & Helding Pvt Lid Re 2 lacs Payable on demand €D @ 12% 08-1147
Kettewoll Bullen & Co Ltd Rs.100 iacs Payable on demand ICO @ 12% 15-01-18
Dewvendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Lid Ra 10 lacs Payabla on demand ICD @ 12% 15-01-18
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Ltd Re.5 lacs Payable on demand KD @ 12% 1501-18
Art Finance & Trade Pyl Lid Rs 69 lacs Payable on demand ICC @ 12% 15-01-18
Devendra Finvest & Hoiding Pvt Lid Rs.70 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 13-01-18
Kanchan Udyog Lid Rs.190 lacs Payable on demand ICO @ 12% 15-01-18
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pt Ltd Rs.10 lacs Payable on dasmand IGD @ 12% 13-02-18
Devendra Finvest & Hoiding Pyt Lid Rs. 7 lacs Payabls on demand ICD @ 12% 13-02-18
Cretwyn Holdngs (ndia Lid Rs. 20 lacs Payable on demand iCO @ 12% 19-03-18
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Ltd Rs 26 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 19-03-18
Devendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Lid Rs. 5 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 19-03-18
P.D.G.D.Investments &Trading PvtLtd.| Rs.110 lacs Payable on demand ICD @ 12% 22-05-18

No advance has been made to any related party whatscever.

On behalf of the Boarg of Directors
For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Kolkata {Suresh Kumar Bangur) {Binod Khaitan)
Dated: August 08, 2018 Executive Director Director
DIN : 00040862 DIN : 00128502

For The Phesphate Co. L.

Shankar Banerjee

Company ‘-‘,ecmtaw
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT (Contd.)
ANNEXURE F

FORM MGT-2
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31-03-2018
{Pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule12(1} of the
Companies (Managememn and Administration) Ruigs, 2014]

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

L 24231WB1949PLC017664
25-02-1949 N.
The Phosphate Company Limited

i. | CN

i. | Registration Date

. | Name of the Company

Company Limited by Shares

14 Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata-700001
033-22300771, 033-224356236
phosphate@vsnl.net

iv. | Category/Sub-Category of the Company

v | Address of the Registered office and contact details

Yes

Maheshwari Datamatios Pvt. Lid.

23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, Sth Floor,
Kolkata -700001

Ph : 033-22482248, Fax . 033-22484787
mdpidc@yahco.com

vi. | Whether listed company

vil. | Name, Address and Contact details of Registror
and Transfer Agent, it any

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
Al the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total tumover of the company shall be stated -

Sr. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. products! services Product! service of the company
1 Single Super Phosphate 3462101 87
2 Others 13
n. PARTICULARS OF HOLBING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE GOMPANIES
Sr. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding / % of | Applicable
No. of The Company Subsidiary/ | shares | Section
Associate held
1. M/s. Abhinandan U24100WB2009PTC 133717 Subsidiary 100 2(87)ii)
Goods Pvt. Lid.
14 N S Road
Kolkata -700 GO1

For The phosphate CO. Lid.

Shankar Baneljiesiy
any Decreld
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i Category-wise ShareHolding

Catagory of No. of Shares hald at the No. of Shares held at the end % Change

Sharehaldars baginning of the year of the year during
(As on 01/Aprilr2047) {Az on 31/March/2018) the ysar

Demat | Physical} Total % of |Demat |Physical| Total | % of
Total Total
Shares Ghares

A.Promoter
1} indian
a} indwidual / HUF | 1296566 30000 (1326566 | 36.7727 ; 1299666 26900 | 1326566 )36.7727 0.0000
b) CentraiGovt
c} State Govi{s) I
d) Bodies Comp 1158010 0 | 115901C | 32.1280 | 1159010 0 | 1159010]32.1280 0.0000
e} Banks / FI
f} Any Other
Sub-tota (A} (1) - 2455576 30000 |2485576 | 68.9007 | 2458676] 26900 |2488576]66.8007 | 0.0000
2) Forsign
g) NRls-Individuals
h) Other-ndividuals
iy Bodies Corp.
i} Banks { Fi
k) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (2) - 0 0 6| 0.0000 0 i

Total Sharehoiding
of Promotor
(A)=(AX1) + (A}2) 2455576 30000 | 2485576 | 68.9007 | 245B676] 26900 | 2485576 (68.9007 {.0000

B.Publie Shareholding
1) Inatitutions
a) Mutual Funds
b} Banka / Ft 1100 3200 43001 9.1182 1100 3200 43007 04182 | 0Q.0000
¢) Central Govt, 0 240 2401 0.0067 0 240 2401 0.0067 | 0.0000
d) State Govt (s)

o) Venture Capital
Funds

fi Insurance 333480 0 | 3334B0% 9.2441| 333480 0 3334801 9.2441 0.0000
Companies
g) Flis

h} Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Othera (specrly)

o

0.0000 0.0000

i ot The Phosphate Co. Lid,

S hevindlees Berns 2
Shankar Banerfee
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

iV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) (Contd.)
i. Category-wise ShareHolding {Contd.)

Catagory of No. of Shares held at the No. of Ehares held at the end  [% Change
Sharaholderg . beginning of the year of the year . dering
{As on 01/Aprilf2047) (A= on 31/Marchf2018) the year
Demat | Physlcal | Total %of |Demat |Physical] Total | % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
Altemate investment
Funds
Foreign Portiolio
Investors

Providend Funds /
Pension Funds
Qualified Foreign
Investor
Sub-otal (B} (1) 334580 340 | 338020 | 9.3700| 334580 3440 | 338020 | 0.3700 | 0.0000
2) Non institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
(i} Indian 139080 M790 | 150870 41821 139080 11790 1 150870 | 4.1821 0.000
(i} Overseas
b} Individusts
i) Individust
shareholders
hotding
nominal share
capital uplo
Rs. 1 lakh 142614 | 183853 | 326467 9.0497] 142486] 182458 | 324944 | 50075 | -0.0422
(i} Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of
Re 1 iakh 285000 ¢ 1285000 {1 7.8003}|285000 0 1285000 {7.5003 3.G00

¢} Others (Spacify)
Non Resident
Indians 987 560 1547 0.0429 2510 360 3070 0.0851 0.06422

Qualified Foreign
Investor
Custodian of
Enemy Property
Foreign Nationals
Cleanng Members
Trusts

For The Phosphate Co. L.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Sacietary
ACE-4073
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) {Contd.)

Category-wise ShareHolding {Contd.)

Category of
Sharshaldars

No. of Sharez held at the
beginning of tha yeor

{Aa on 01/Aprili2017)

No. of Shares held at the ond

(As on 31/March/2018)

of the yeer

% Change
during

the year

Demat

Physlcai

Total

% of
Total

Demat

Phy
sical

Total % of
Total

Sheares

Foreign Bodiss-DR

Foreign Portfolio
Investors

4)NBFC's
Registered with
RBI

20000

20000

0.5544

20000

20000} 05544

0.0000

Employeg Trusts

Domestic Corporation
Unclaimed Shares

Invesior Education &
Protection Fund
Authority

Sub-total (B)2) :

587881

196203

783884

21.7294

589078

194808

783884 | 21.7284

0.00

Total Public
Shareholding
{B)=(B)(1)+ B)2)

922261

199643

1121504

31.0984

923656

198248

1121304 | 31.0994

C.8hares held by
Gustodian for
GDRa&ADRa

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

33778837

220643

3607480 (1

0.0000

3382332

225148

3607480 |100.0000

0.0600

For The Phosphate Co. L.

ShosSa

Company Secrafary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
ii. hareholding of Promotars

Sr. Sharehotders Name Shareholding at the beginning Sharsholding &t the snd of
No of the year {As on 01.04.2017) the year (As on 31.03.2018)

Ne. of % of total % of No. of % of % of %
Shares Shares Shares | Shares total shares change
of the Pledgad/ Shares | Pledged/ | in share
company encum- otthe encum holding
bered to company | bered fo | dering

total total the

shares shares yesar
t | Madhaev Trading Comporation Limited| 374880 | 103917 G.0000 | 374880 | 10.3917 | 00000 | 0.0000
2 | Shrivats Khaitan 231000 | 64034 0.0000 | 231000 64034 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
3 | Credwyn Holdings India 175000 | 4.8510 0.0000 | 175000 48510 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
4 | Keftlewsll Bullen & Company Ltd. 170000 | 47124 0.0000 { 170000 47124 { 0.0000 § 0.0000
& | Nikate Khaitan 164740 | 45666 0.0000 | 164740 45666 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
6 | Chandrakala Xhaitan 148260 | 4.1103 0.0000 | 148230 44103 § 60000 | 00000
7 | Joonkteliee Tea and Industries Lid. 138680 | 38442 0.0000 | 138680 38442 1 00000 | 0.0000
8 | Nikate Khaitan 105600 | 29272 0.0000 } 105600 29273 | 0.6600 | 0.0000
B | Raj Packwell Limited 100000 | 2.7720 0.0000 | 100000 27720 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
10 | Amwi Tradecom Private Limited 100000 27720 0.0000 | 100000 27720 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
tt Wind Power Vimmay Pwt. Lid. 87840 24348 G.00G0 87840 24349 0.006G 0.0060
12 | Binod Khaitan 82400 | 22841 0.0000 | 82400 22841 | 00000 | 0.6000
13 | Madan Gopal Bangur 79500 | 22038 Q0000 | 79500 22038 | oDOOO | 00000
14 | Bina Bangur 70900 | 1.9654 0.0000 | 70900 18654 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
15 | Sakate Khaitan 64760 | 17952 | 0.0000 | 64760 1.7852 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
16 | Suresh Kumer Bangur 50860 | 1687 0.0000 { 60860 16871 | 00000 { 0.0000
17 | Rajendra Kumar Bangur 56900 | 1.5773 0.0000 | 56900 15773 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
18 | Gita Bangur 46200 | 1.2807 0.0000 | 46200 1.2807 | 0.0000 § 0.0000
19 | Suresh Kumar Bangur 43000 | 1.1820 0.0000 | 43000 1.1920 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
20 | Vijay Kumar Bangur 26400 ( 08150 | 0.0000 | 29400 0.8150 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
21 | Ramash Kumar Bangur 27208 | 07542 00000 | 27208 07542 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
22 | Pradyumna Bangur 26580 | 0.7368 0.0000 | 26530 0.7368 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
23 | Sudarshan Bamgur 26300 | 0.7290 0.0000 | 28300 07200 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
24 |} Anirudh Bangur 15100 | 04186 0.0000 | 15100 04186 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
25 | Usha Kiran Bangur 13380 | 0.3708 0.0000 | 13380 0.3708 | 06.0000 | 0.0000
26 | The Crenw Company Limited 9610 | 0.2664 0.0000 9610 02664 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
27 | Ajay Bangur 7800 | 02182 0.0000 7800 02162 | 00000 | €.00600
28 | Bimala Devi 5400 | 0.1497 0.0000 5400 0.1497 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
29 | Shree Prakash Bangur 5400 1 0.1497 0.0000 5400 01487 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
30 | Milan Bangur 4000 { 0.1109 0.0000 4000 0.1108 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
31 { Luxmi Devi 4000 | 0.1109 0.0000 4000 0.1109 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
32 | Ramesh Kumar Bangur 4000 0.1109 10000 4000 0.1108 0.0000 0.0000
33 | Bangur Trafin Pvi Ltd. 3000 § 00832 0.000 § 03000 00832 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
34 | Suresh Kumar Bangur 2000 | 0.0554 G.060 | G2000 0.0554 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
35 | Sushma Bangur 840 0.0233 £.00C0 840 0.0233 0.0000 0.0000
36 | Veena Bangur 520 | 0.0144 0.0000 520 00144 [ 0.0000 [ 0.0000
37 | Murli Dhar Khaitan 300 | 0.0082 0.0000 300 00083 | 00000 | 0.0000
38 | Hemant Bangur 200 | 0.0055 0.0000 200 0.0055 | 0.0000 | 0.0000
TOTAL 2485576 | 66.9007 | 00000 | 248557 | 668.9007 | 0.0000 | 0.0000

For The Phosphate Co. Lud.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Change In Promoters’ Shareheiding{please specify, if there is no change

Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No beglnning of the year during the year and at the
end of the year 31.3.2018
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the Company the company
At the beginning of the year 2485576 68.9007 2485576 68.9007
Date wise Increase / Decrease Nl ] Ni Nil
in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying
the reasons for Increase
{ decrease (e.g. ailotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc).
At the End of the year 2485576 68.9007 2485576 68.9007

Shareholding Pattern of top tep Shareholders (other than Diractors, Promotore and Holdars of

GDRs arnd ADRs)} :

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
[01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018]
and at the end of the
year 31.03.2018

No of %% of total MNo. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the company the company
Life Insurance Corporation Of india
01-04-2017 189240 5.2458 189240 5.2458
31-03-2018 169240 5.2458
Ramesh Chandra Tapuriah
01-04-2017 110600 3.0452 110006 3.0492
31-03-2018 110000 3.0492
Shri Sudershan Prasad Bagaria
01-04-2017 100000 27720 100000 27720
31-03-2018 100000 27720
The New India Assurance Company Limited
01-04-2017 82720 2.2930 82720 2.2830
31-03-2018 82720 22930
National Insurance Company Lid
01-04-2017 61520 1.7053 61520 1.7053
31-03-2018 61520 1.7053
ShrishTapuriah
01-04-2017 50000 1.38860 50000 1.3860
31-03-2018 50000 1.3860

For The Phesphate Co. w.d.

Shankar Baner]
Comgpany I acratary
ACS-45073
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
[01 04.2017 to 31.03 2018]
and at the end of the
year 31.03.2018

i

No. of % of total No. of % of total

shares shares of shares shares of
the company the company

7 S R Tie Up Private Limited *

31-04-2017 45000 1.2474 45000 1.2474

31-03-2018 45000 1.2474
8 Sangam Merchants Pvt Ltd *

01-04-2017 35000 0.9702 35000 0.9702

31-03-2018 35000 0.9702
9 Maruti Business Services Ltd

01-04-2017 27010 0.7487 27010 0.7487

31-03-2018 27010 0.7487
10 Hindusthan Udyog Limited

01-04-2017 26400 0.7318 26400 0.7318

31-03-2018 26400 0.7318

For The Phosphate Co. Liu.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Sacratary
ACS-45973




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Shareholding Pattern of Director and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
[01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018]
and at the end of the
year 31.03.2018

No. of % of totai No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the company the company
Shri Binod Khaitan
01-04-2017 82400 2.2841 82400 2.2841
31-03-2018 B2400 22841
Shri Hemant Bangur
01-04-2017 200 0.0055 200 0.0055
31-03-2018 200 0.0055
Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur @
01-04-2017 43000 1.1820 43000 1.1920
31-03-2018 43000 1.1820
Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur #
01-04-2017 2000 0.0554 2000 0.0554
31-03-2018 2000 0.0554
Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur®
01-04-2017 60860 1.6871 60860 1.6871
31-03 2018 80860 16871
Shri Ajay Bangur
01-04-2017 7800 0.2162 7800 0.2162
31.03-2018 7800 0.2162

@ as Trustee
# as Karta of HUF
* in personal capacity

Smt. Vijaya Mohan, Shri Dilip P. Gokuldas and Shri Shankar Banerjee does net hoid any shares of the Company.

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd,

Shewidlers Bovnayee

Shankar Baneriee
Company Secretary
ACS-AHNT3




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
V.  INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company incfuding interest outstanding / acerued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
ex¢luding
depoaits

Unsscurad
Loans

Total
Indebtadness

Deposits

indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i} Principal Amount

Rs. 1157.88 lacs

Rs.2573.24 lacs

NI | Rs. 3731.10 tacs |

i} Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil il
iii} Interest accrued but not paid Nil Rs, 58.21 lacs Nil Rs. 59.21 haes
Total (i + i + i} Rs. 1157.86 lacs | Rs. 2632 45 lags Nl Rs. 3790.31 lacs

Change in Indebtedness during

the financial year
- Addition Rs. 702.21 lacs | Rs. 2541.94 lacs Nil Rs. 3244.15 |acs
- Redugtion Rs. 87.65 lacs | Rs. 3565.11 jacs INil Rs. 3662.76 lacs
Net Change Rs. 604.56 lacs | (R5.1023.17 lacs) Nil (Rs, 418.61 lags)

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

i} Principat Amount
il) Interest due but not paid
lii) Interest accrued but not due

Rs. 1762.42 lacs
Nil
Nt

Rs, 1527.05 lacs
Nil
Rs. 82.23 lacs

iNif Rs.3288.47 |acs
Nil N
Nil Rs, 82.23 lacs

Total {i + ii + iit)

Rs. 17682.42 lacs

Rs, 1609.28 lacs

Nil Rs. 3371.70 lacs

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Shankar Banerjee
Company 3zqretary
ACE45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A, Rem‘yngr‘atfon to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Name Total
No. Amount
1. Gross salary Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur _
(a) Salary as per provisions contained | Rs. 3195000 ‘
in section17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b}) Value of parquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1561 Rs. 410612
fey Profits in lieu of satary under
section 17(3} Income- tax Act, 1964 INil
2 Stock Option N
3. Sweat Eguity Nil
4. Commission
- as % of profit N
- othets, specify... N
5. Others, please specify It
6. Total {A) Rs. 36805612

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl Particutars of Remuneration Total
No. Amount

Independent Directors ShiDP Smt Vijaya
Goculdas Mehan

* Fee for attending board

committee meetings Rs. 75,000 Rs. 1,55,000 Rs. 2,30,000
*  Cemmission INil INil Nil
+ Cthers, please specily Ni Nil Nit
Total (1) Rs. 75,000 Rs. 1,55,000 Rs. 2,30,000

Other Non-Executive Directors Shri Binod Khaitan Shri Hemant Bangur
+ Fee for attending board

committee meetings Rs. 1,00,000 Rs. 95,000 Rs. 1,895,000

+  Commission I A Wil

+ Others, please specify Nl Nl Nil

Total (2} Rs. 1,00,000 Rs. 95,000 Rs. 1,895,000

Total B)=¢1+2) . .. . . | Rs. 4,25,000

= | JotalManagerial Remuneration | [ ) Rs. 40,30,612
Qverall Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 84,00,000

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secratary
ACE-450TS




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD / Manager / WTD

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Key Managertal Personnel
No.
Company CFO Total
Secretary
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions Rs. 5,31,268 Rs. 31,895,000 Rs. 37,26,268

contamed in sectron17{1) of

the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b} Value of perquisites Rs. 70,970 Rs. 4,19,677 Rs. 4,90,647

ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
{c} Profits in lieu of salary

under section 17(3) Income-tax

Act, 1961 Nil Nil Nil

2 Stock Option Nil Nt Nl

3. Sweat Equity Nl Nl Nil
4 Commission

- as % of profit Nil Nil Ni

others, specify N Nt Nt

= Others, please specify N3 Nil N

6. Total Rs. 6,02,238 Rs. 36,114,677 Rs. 42, 16,915

Vil. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

-
Gn behalf of the Board of Directors
For The Phasphate Co. Ltd.
Kotkata {(Suresh Kumar Bangur) {Binod Khaitan)
Dated” August 08, 2018 Executive Director Director

DIN : 00040862 DIN : 00128502

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Sheandt 4‘4’831/\#%)\&
Shankar Banerjee
Compeany Gacielary
ACH-450773




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS' REPORT (Contd.}
ANNEXURE G
[Pursuant to Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014]
1 The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of all employees who were on the
payroll of the Company and the percentage increase in remuneration of the Directors during the financial
year 2017-18 are given below .

Non Executive Directors : Ratio to Median Percentage
Increase in
Remuneration
A} Independent
i Smt Vijaya Mohan 0.82 244
i, ShriBilip P Goculdas 040 50
B) Non Independent
i.  Shri Binod Khaitan 0.53 233
ii.  8Shri Hemant Bangur 0.50 171
C) Whole time Director
1) Shn Suresh Kumar Bangur 18.99 32

Remarks : “Remuneration is based on attendance in Board / Committee meetings. Rate of Remuneration has
changed compared to last year

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer is 32% and of the Company Secretary

is 15%.

3 The percentage increase / (decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year ie 6%.
The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31/03/2018 is 52 against 52 as on
31/03/2017.

S The percentage increase / {decrease) in the Average salaries of employees in the last financial year is

24% as against an increase / (decrease) of 31% in the Average salary of the managenai personnel as
defined under the Act. The increment given to each individual empleyee is based on the employees’
potential, experience as also their performance and contribution to the Company’'s progress over a period
of time anc also benchmarked against a comparable basket of relevant companies in India.

6. it is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees, adopted by the Company.
7. The information required under Rule 5{2) and (3) of The Companies {Appointmemnt and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 needs to be provided in the Annexure forming part of the Report. In
terms of the 1st proviso to Section 136 of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the
Shareholders excluding the aforesaid Annexure. Any Shareholder inmterested in obtaining the same may
write to the Company Secretary at the Registerad Office of the Company

B. There was no woman in the employment of the Company during the financial year 2017-18.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Kolkata {Suresh Kumar Bangur) {Binod Khaitan)
Dated. August 08, 2018 Executive Director Directer
DIN . 00040862 DiN . 00128502

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secretary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE H
FORM No. MR3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended On 31at March, 2018

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companigs Act, 2013 and Rule Ne¢ 9 of the Companies
{Appaintment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

Te,

The Membaers,

THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

14 NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD,

KOLKATA-700001

We have been appointed by the Board of Directors of The Phosphate Company Limited
(L24231WB1949PLCC17664 ) hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2018

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by The Phosphate Company Limited {(hereinafter called the Company} having its
Registered Office at 14 Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata-700001, West Bengal. Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us 2 reasonable bass for evaluating the corporate conductsfstatutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on owr verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and cther records
maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authaorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subjest to the reporting made hereinafier:
1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and returns filed and other records
maintained by The Phosphate Company Limited(*the company’) for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2018 according to the provisions of:

{i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
{i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1856 ("SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byedaws famed thereunder,

{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1989 and the rules and regulaticns made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct !nvestment and External Commercia! Borrowings;- (Ne
such Transactions, hence not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

{v] The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of india
Act, 1882 ["SEBI Act)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulatlons, 201

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading)Reguiations, 2015;

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclogure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015;

{e} The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Depositones and Participants) Regulations, 1898,

For The Phosphate Co. Liu.

5%&%»{(&4,(8 :
Shankar Banerjee ] =5~
Company Secretary

ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

(f) The following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically apphcable to the Company as per
the Management Representation Letter issued by the Company of even date:

{iy Fertiliser (Control) Order 1985 issued under the Essential Commaodities Act, 1955 by the Central Government

2 P_rcrvisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 {'SEBI Act') which are not applicable to the Company during the financial year under report -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclogure Raequirements)
Regulations, 2009;

(b} The Securittes and Exc_:hange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee  Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Reguiations, 2014;

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Requlations. 2008,
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of indtia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Requiations, 2009;
{e) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Buyback of Secumties) Regulations, 1998.

3. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Calcutta Steck Exchange

4. During the pericd under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards. etc mentioned above

Further, natice by the Caleutta Stock Exchange Ltd. for suspension of dealing of Company's equity shares
has been revoked and dealiing has been admitted we.f 08-01-2018.

5. We further report that

(i The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper baiance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

(i) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at

the meeting.

(i) Adl deciston at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been camied unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the Meelings of the Board of Directors or Commitiee of the Board, as the case may be.

6 We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination
of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied
with the laws applicable specifically to the Company.

7. we further report that there are 3dequate sysiems and processes in the company cofmmensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monilor and ensure compliance with applicable lews, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

We further report that, to the best of our understanding, the Company, during the year under report, the Company,

has following specific events/actions have a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the laws,

regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred to as above are as follows.-

(Iy Company has obtained approval of members on the following items by way of Special Resolution through
Postal Baliot under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

For The Phosphate Co. Lw.

Shankar Banerjee

Company Secretary
ACS-445473




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

{a) To Amend existing Article 56 of the Articles of Asseciation Of the Company with the following new
Article 56

*Any debenture, debenture- stock, bonds or other securities Mmay be issued at 2 discount, premium
or otherwise and with any special privileges as to redemption, surrender, drawings, allotment of
shares, appointment of Directors, transferability i.e. transferable or non- transferable, and otherwise.
Debentures, debenture- stock, bonds and other securities may be made assignable free from any
equities between the Company and the person to whom the same may be issued”

{b} To issue Non- Convertible Zero Coupen Asset Backed Debentures {"NCZCABD/Debenture’) of face
value Rs.1,00,00,000/- of the Company at par on Private Placement basis

The consent of the members of the Company accorded to the Board to create, [ssue, offer and allot
Upto a maximum of 10 (Ten) Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Zerg Coupon Asset Backed
Debentures ("NCZCABD/ Debenture’) having face value of Rs. 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore)each
at par, for an aggregate amount of upho a maximum of Rs. 10,00,00,000 {Rupees Ten Crores aniy}
- ONn private placement basis to such person or persens, whether or not they are Member(s} of the
Company in one or more tranches during a period of one year from the date of passing this resolution
within the overall borrewing limits of the Company, as approved by the Members, from time to time

(¢) To Issue 60000 Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (NGRPS) of face value
Rupees 1000- each of the company.
The consent of the members of the Company accorded to the Board to create, offer and/er invite
to subscribe, Issue and allot, for cash at par 66000 (Sixty Thousand) Non Convertible Redeemable

Preference Shares (*“NCRPS/ Preference Shares"; of face value of Rs. 1000/- Rupees One Thousand
Cnly aggregating to Rs. 6,00,00,000/- Rupees 8ix Crores Only on private placement basis

(d) (i} To Increase the Borrowing Limit of the Company by Hypothecation of the Company's Assets from
existing Rs.100.00 crores to Rs.125.00 crores.under the provision of Section 180(1)}a) and
other applicable provisions of the Conipanies Act, 2013.

{in To lncrease the Borrowing Limit of the Company from existing Rs.100.00 crores to Rs.125.00
croresunder the provision of Section 180{1}c) of the Companies Act, 2013

(e) To Increase the Investment, Lending, Guarantee Limi to Rg.10 Crores under the provisions of Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Place: Kolkata For AGARWALA & ASSOCIATES

Date: 7th August, 2018 Company Secretaries
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Propristar

C.P No.- 13493

M. Neo. : FT604

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure — A and forms an integral
part of this report.

ot For The Phosphate Co. L.

Shankar Banerjee
Company $4cratary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
"ANNEXURE A

To,

The Members,

THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
14 NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD,

KOl KATA-700001

Qur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility
is lo express an opinion on these secretanal records based on our audit.

2. We have foliowed the audit practices and processes as were approprizie to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretanal records. The verification was done on test basis
{o ensure that comect facts are reflected in secretarial records. We belisve that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation zbout the compiiance of taws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc

5. The compiiance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable iaws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

8. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kotkata For AGARWALA & ASSOCIATES

Date: 7th August, 2018 Company Secretaries
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Proprietor

GC.P No. 13483

M. No. . F7604

For The Phasphate Co. L.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secretary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
{“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018 the Statement of Profit and Loss
{inciuding Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Staternent and the Statement of Changes In Equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {herain
after referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial statements™).

Management's Responsibliity for the Standalone (nd AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (*the Act") with respect fo the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and far view of the state of affairs (financial position}, profit or less (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), cashflows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principies generally accspted in India. including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act read with relevant Rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intermai fimancial controts, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presantation of the standalone Ind AS financial stataments that give a true and fair viaw and
are free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder

We conducted our audit of the standalone ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financiai
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the
assassment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statemenis, whether due to
fraud or efror In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internat financial controt relevant to the
Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reascnableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overalli presentation of the standaione Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our audit
opinion on the standatone Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give 2 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generaily accepled in India including the




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Ind AS, of the state of affars{financial poston) of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and s profit (financal
performance including other comprehensive income), its cashflows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Other Matter

The audit of the standalone financial statements for the comresponding year ended 31st March 2017, prepared
in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards was camied out by the predecessor cudior vide their
unmodified report dated 25th May 2017, whose report have been furnished to us by the management and which
have been relied upon by us for the purpess of our audit of the standalone financial statements. Our audit report
i3 not medified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure A", a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

I As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, wa report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balarce Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accoum

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the direciors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disciosed the mpact of pending litigations on #ts financral position m its
standalone Ind AS financial statements {Refer Note No 35 to the standalone ind AS financial
statements).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term centracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There is no amount which is required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Gompany.

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Fimn's Registration Number- 306033E
{Hemant Kumar Lakhotia)

Piace: Kolkata Partner
Dated: May 22, 2018 Membership No: 068851

For The Phosphate Co. L.

She Al 3
Shankar Banerjee

Company Sacratary
AGH-40073
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure -A to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Audtor's Report to the members of THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY
LIMITED ("The Company™) on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended on 31st March 2018.
We report that:

i (s} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative dstails snd
situation of fixed assets.

{p) The Company has a regular programme of physical vemfhcation of s fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard 1o the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

{c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are heid in the name of the Company.

i The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at reguiar intervals. in
our opinion and according to the information and explanations giveh to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical veriflcation.

fi. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the regrster mainteined under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act) Accordingly, paragraph 3(iiiy(a). 3(ii)(b) and 3(iiiXc) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities made.

v. The Company has not accepied any deposits from the public.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act,
and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

vi.  According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

{a} The Company has been regufar in depositing undisputed stetutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, income Tax, Good & Service Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added
Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Cess and other statutory duss with the appropriate authorities
during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) Actording to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of duty of
customs, income tax, saies fax, excise duty, value suded tax, service tax and any cther statutory
dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

viii. In our opinicn and according to information and expianations given to us by the management, we are of
the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institution, banks,
Government and debenture holders.

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Shankar Banerjee

Company Secrotary
ACE-4L0T73




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, term
loans avaited by the Company were applied by the Company for the purposes far which the loans were
obtained. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) during the year

X. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by ifs officars or empioyees has been noticed or reported during the ourse of owr audit,

X1 Agcording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remunerations in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Sec 197 read with
Schedute V to the Act.

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company is not a Nighi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xil) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given io us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone ind AS financiai
statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placemant of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

xv. Agcording to the mformation and explanations given 10 us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv} of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

For §. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number- 306033E
(Hemant Kumar Lakhotia)

Place: Kolkata Partner
Dated: May 22, 2018 Membership No: 088851

Far The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

&L hovrflers BDW]%
Shankar Banerjee

Company Secretary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Annexure-B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Sectlon 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The Phosphate Company Limited (“the
Caompany®} as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibtlity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsitle for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on
the internal contrel over financial reperting criteria established by the Company considering the esssntial components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAY). These responsibilities include the design, impiementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and complefeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responisibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controle over financial reporting
based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Noté on Audit of Internal Financiai
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing. issued by ICA! and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent appircabile to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both I1ssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether adequate internat
financial controls over financial reperting was established and maintained and if such contreis operated effectively
i all matenal respects.

Qur audit invelves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the intermnal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide & basis for our audit
opinion ¢n the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Flnancial Controls over Financial Reporiing

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reilabiity of hnancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes In accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting inciudes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainterance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recerded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting pringiples, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3} provide reasonable asswance regarding pravention of timely detection of uhauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secralary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial centrels over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, materiat misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
tofuture periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that ihe degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opimion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial repoiting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectivety as at 31
March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essentiat components of intermal controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internat Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

For S. K. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number- 306033E
(Hemant Kumar Lakhotin)

Place: Kotkata Partner
Drated: May 22, 2018 Membership No: 08B8S1

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Sarcrzjary
ACS-45,7%




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2018

Partlculars Notes 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 1st April, 2018
ASSETS
i.  Non-current assets
a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 3 73,16,20.741 73.48,86.914 74,2251 089
b)  Capital workin-progress 3 15,30,823 3.30,000 4,789,499
¢} Financial Assets
i} invesiments 4 24,32,000 24,32,000 24,32,000
i} Loans 5 4613033 46,61,249 48,28.473
&) Deferred tax sesets (nef) 6 4382758 93.18.231 1.10.71.341
74,48,88 355 75,16,29,304 76,10,62,408
Il.  Current assets
a) Inventories 7 11,19,64,979 9,79,50, 765 16,2967 172
b)  Financial Assets
) Investmenis 8 9,48,950 5,00,686 17.84,271
i)  Trade receivables 9 20,38,67,878 22,47 55,000 30,3373,123
i} Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,01.948 475,175 4,682,612
iv) Other Bank Balances 11 1,17,36,970 96,17.310 1.78,20,660
v] Loans 12 4,19,80,000 4,19,82,000 5,07,18,000
vi)  Other Financial Assets 13 4,84 01,994 4,688,995 727 5,28,04,025
¢}  Current Tax Asset (Net) 14 — 256,216 13,06,793
d)  Other Current Assets 15 2,70,50,045 80,86,570 52,63.699
44,64,52,764 43,05,27 445 59,77,00,355
Total Assets 1,19,10,41,118 1,18,21,56,843 1,36,87,62,763
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity
a)  Equrty Share Capital 16 3,60,74,800 3,60,74,800 3.60,74 800
b)  Other Equity 17 65,9886 277 64,55,59070 64,16 25,563
69,59,61.077 68,16,33,870 67,77.00,363
B. Liabilitles
I. Non-current liabilitles
a) Financial Liabilities
i)y  Borrowings 18 10,16,52,060 10,08,34,818 11,26,47,386
iy Other financia! liabilities 19 1.24,74,756 1.25,73,763 1.25,67,943
b) Provisions 20 29,18,196 24,77.350 44 53 255
11,70,45,003 11,58,85,931 12,95,68,584
li. Current liabilitles
a)  Financial Liabilities
i Berrowings 2 21.51,68,417 24,709,809 261 34,62,28,035
Iy  Trade payabies 2 12,21,14,076 10,15,50,419 16,33,38,927
i Other financial liabilities 23 1,24,41,642 1.7862.772 3.08,55,230
b)  Other current liabiliting 24 2,46,05 675 1,51,80,850 2,70,71,624
¢}  Provisions 25 26,61,849 20.83.650 —
d) Currend Tax Liabilities (Nat) p. 3 10,43,380 — —
37,80,35.039 38.46.37,042 55,14,93.816
Total Equity and Liabfiitfes 1,19,10,41,119 1,18,21 56 843 1.35,87.62,763
Significart Accounting Poficies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

Ag psr our report of aven dute attackest,

For, S. K. Agrawal & Co.
Charered Accourtants
Firm Registration Number: 306033E

Hemant Xumar Lakhotla
Partner

Membership No. 068851
Place: Kolkata

Dated : 22nd May, 218

Binod Khaitan

Director

{DIN 00128502}

Suresh Kumar Bangur
Exaeutive Director

{DIN 00040862}

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vijaya Mohan
Independent Director
{DIN 02474421}

Afay Bangur
President & CFO

Shankar Banerjee

Dy. Secretary

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.
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Shankar Banerjee
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Partleutars Notes 31st March, 2018 318t March, 2047

A INCOME

. Gross Sales / Income from Operations 754572038 £8,73,00,443
Less : Discounts, Rebates & Taxes {6.33,83,884) (5,89,48,354)
Revenua from Oparations 69 11,88 152 63.03,54,089)

Il. Otherincome 27 23,40,841 36,93,749
Total Income 69,35,28,993 63,40 47,838

B. Expenses

lll. Cost of Material Consumed 28 34,19,32, 485 28,2707 415
Purchase of Trading Goods 7,156,898 839 6,26,28,518
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods
Stock in Trade and Work-in-Progress 29 64,14 265 2,25,99,221
Excise Duty on Sale of Goods 593,615 358,61,518
Employee benefit Expenses 30 2,74,58,592 2,48,45 247
Other Expenses 3z 18,26,26,409 15.38,00,061

Total Expenses
C. Earnings before Interest, Depreciation and Tax

61,06,24,205

§6,03,42,380

{EBIDTA) (A-B} 8,29.04,787 8,37,05,458
Finange Cost Bil 5,08,59,165 8,71,73.891
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 1,03,28,605 99,28,920
I¥. Profit Before Tax 217,17,018 66,022,647
V. Tax Expense .
1. Current Tax 14,07, 113 -
2. Deferred Tax 49,358,473 17,52,110
VI. Prolit for the year {IV-V) 1,53,73,432 48,50,537
Vil. Other Comprehensive Income
lterms that will not be classified to statement of
Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities {10,46,225) (9,17,030)
Total Comprehensive Incoma for the Year (VI-VI) 1,43.27.207 39,33.507
Eamings per equity share —_— ——  — =i
Basic & Diluted 426 1.34
Cash 7.12 4.10
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of aven date attached. Far and an betalf of the Board of Directors

For, 8. K. Agrawal & Co.

Charlered Accountants Binod Khaltan Vijaya Mohan

Firm Registration Number: 206033 Direttor Independent Director
{DIN 001 28502} {DIN 02474421}

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia

Partner Surash Kumar Bangur Ajay Bangur

Membership No. 068851 Executive Director Prasident & CFO

Place: Kolkata {DIN 00040862}

Dated : 22nd May, 2018
Shankar Banarjee

Dy Secratary

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Showoflors Berrsartjez,
Shanksr Bsnerjee
Compain = aniBiarny
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

a. Equity Share Capital Amount in Rs.
Balance as at 1 April 2016 3,60,74,800
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 2016-17 —
Balance as at 31 March 2017 3,60,74,800
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 2017-18 —
Balance as at 31 March 2018 3,80,74,800

b.  Other Equity

Reserve and Surplus Other Total

Compre- | Other Equity

Securities Ganeral Retained hensive

Pramium Reserve Eamings Income
Balance as at 1 Aprit 2016 2,62,50,000 | 64,60,34 254 (3,08,91,691} 2,33,000 | 64,16,25,563
Profit for the year 48,50,537 48 50,537
Othet Comprahensive Income ‘ (8,17,030) {9,17,030)
Balance &3 at 31 March 2017 2,62,50,000 | 64,60,34,254 (2.60,41,154) (6,84,030) | 84,55,59,070
Baiance as at 1 Aprl 2017 2/62,50,000 | 64,60,34,254 | (2.60.41,154) (6.84,030) | 64,55,59,070
Profit for the year 1,53,73,432 — | 1,53,73,432
Other Comprehsnsive Income (10,46,225) {10,46,225)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 262,50.000 | 64.60.34,254 | (1,06.67,722) (17.30,255) | 65,9886 277

For and ¢n behalf of ihe Board of Dirsctors
For, 5. K. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants Binod Khaitan Vilaya Mohan

Firm Registration Numbar: 306033E Directar Irdependent Director
{DIN 00128502} {DIN 02474421}

Hemant Kumar Lakhotla

Partner Suresh Kumar Bangur AJay Bangur

Membership No. 068851 Executive Director Presidert & CFO

Place: Kolkata {DIN 00040862}

Cated : 22nd May, 2018
Shankar Banerjee

Dy. Secretary

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Shankar B_anerjee
Compan ';«r-’:n-.;::tary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activitios
Net Profit before Tax 2,06,70,793 56,685,617
Add: Adjustments for Non Cash & Non Operating Itams
Interest Racarved (10,66 835) (14,08,298)
Interest Paid 4 ,86,67,586 5.77,76,564
Depraciation 1,03,28,605 89,28 920
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 7.88,00,149 7,19,84,703
Add: Increase /Dacreass in Working Capital
Increase in Current Liabilities 2,45 97 252 {7.67.01,640)
(IncreaseyDecrease in Non-Cument/Cument Financial and other Assets {2,10,34,914) 66,47,709
Increase/(Decreaga) in Non-CurentCurrent Financial and ofher Liabiifies 4,40 846 (19,75,905)
Decrease in Provision 5,78,198 20,831,650
Inerease in Investments {4,40,264) 12,83,585
Increass in Inventories {1,40,14 214) 6,50,16.407
Trade & Other Receivables 1,93,90,855 9,33 54 421
95,098,756 8,97,08,227
Cash generated fram Operaticn 8,83,09,905 16,16,92,930
Ciract Tax Paid {1,07,517) 10,50,577
Nst Cash flow from Operating Activities 8,82,02,268 16,27 43,507
B. Cash Flow from Inveating Actlvities
Purchase of Fixed assels/CWIP (84,11,928) (24,25 048)
Sale of Fixed Assets 1,39,673 10,762
Interest Received 10,66,835 14,08,398
Net Cash used in Inveating Activities (72,05,420) {10,08,848)
C. Cash Flow fram Finsncing Activities
Net Proceeds from Borrowings (3,21,02,608) (10,39,45,532)
Interest Paid (4,88,67,586) {5,77,78,564)
Not Cash uaed in Flnancing Activities {8,08,70,195) (18,17,24,006)
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivelents {A+B-C) 26,773 12,563
Ceth & Cash Equivalenta-Opening Balance 475175 462612
Cash & Cash Equivalenis-Ciosing Belanced 5,061,944 475,175

—_—

# Fixed Deposit having oniginal maturity of over 3 months nol included

As per our repont of even date atiachad. For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

For, §. K. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants Binod Khaltan Vijaya Mchan

Firm Registration Number: 306033E Director independent Director
{DIN 00128502} {DIN 02474421}

Hemant Kumar Lakholla

Partner Suresh Kumar Bangur Ajay Bangur

Membarship No. 068851 Exscutive Director Presidemt & CFO

Place: Kolkata {DIN 00040862}

Dated - 22nd May, 2018 )
Shankar Banenjee

Dy Secretary

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Shankar Banerjee
Cppang Sesmpary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Stataments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

o

Company Overview

The Phosphate Company Limited (‘the Company’} is a limited company incorporated in India, having its
registered office situated at 14, Netaj Subhas Road, Kolkata. The Company has its shares listed on Calcutta
Stock Exchange (CSE). The Company is primarily engaged in the business of farm inputs comprising of
fertiiser, crop protection, spectafty nutrients and organic compost & Acid. The manufacturing unnt of the
company is located at Rishra, West Bengal.

Significant Accounting Pollicies
a) Basis of Preparation

These accourtts have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 {"Act'] read with relevant Rules. These financial statements
are prepared in accordance with historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain
financigd instruments which are measured at fair values.

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was cafried out in accordance with Ind AS
101- First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was garried out from Indian
Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant Rules which was the previous GAAP Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the
transition has been summarized in Note 39.

b) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognzed when all signifigant risks
and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer as per the terms of the contredt and
no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale of the goods and regarding its collection. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and includes excise duty and ara net of retums and allowances, trade discounts,
volume rebates and value added tax and goods and service tax.

Dividend income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is established. Interest
income 15 recognized using the effective interest method. All other income are recognzed on accrual
tasis.

c} Subsidy
Subsidy / Concession receivable on the Company's product are accounted on accrual basis and where

there is a reasonable assurance that such subsidy will be receivable and the company will be able to
comply with the requirements attached with ifs realisation.

d) Property, Plant & Equipmant
Property, Plant and Eguipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The cost of Property, Plant & Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including
import duties and other nen-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable ¢ost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on leans borrowed
specifically for acquisition of capital assets are capitalized till the start of commercial production,
Depreciation s provided on the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of assels and are
in line with the requirements of Part C of Schedule || of the GCompanies Act, 2013.
Advances paid fowards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date is classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets and the cost of assets
not put to use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital Work in Progress'.
The cost and related accumuiated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements upon saie
or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or logsses are fecognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss.

For The Phesphate Co. tiu.

Shankar Banerjee
Company S=anr2iary
ACL-4807 5




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

@)

f)

The method of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Inventories

inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is Jower. Closing stock has been valued
on FIFO basis. Cost comprises expenditure inourred in the nomal course of business in bringing such
inventories to ils location and includes, where applicabie, appropriale overheads based on normal level
of activity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of compietion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financlal Instrumants

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial hiabilities when ft becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair vaiue
on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition.
Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at Wrade date.

Subsequent measurement

Non derivative financial instruments

1} Flnancial assets carried at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within 2 business model
whose abjective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comgrehensive income if it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subseguently fair valued
through profit or loss.
4) Financial liabillties
Financial liabilties are subsequently carried at amorlized cost using the effective interest method,
except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For frade and other payables maiuring within one
year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.
5) Investment in subsidiaries
investment in subsidiaries 8 camied at cost in the separate financial statements.
Derivative finarcial instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss and the
resulling exchange gains or losses are incuded in Other Income/Financial Cost

Lew
Shankar Banerjee
Company Zac ctary

ACL-L007 5
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Flnancial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

a)

h}

i}

Derecognition of financial instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under
Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the confract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Fair Value Measurement

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inpuls and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All methods of assessing fair value result in generat
approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

All assets and liablities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hirarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest lavel input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i} Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

iy Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is direclly or indirectly observable.

iy Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

Impairment

Impairment is recognized based on the following principles:

Finantial Assets

The Company recognizes loss aliowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial

assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The amount of expected credit losses (or

reversal} that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required

to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or foss in profit or loss.

Non-Financial Assets

Other asseis are tested for impaimment whenever events of changes in circumstances indicate that the

cafrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment less is recognized for the amount by which the

assets camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an

assets fair value less costs of disposal and vaiue in use. For the purpase of assessing impairment,

assets are grouped at the lowest levet for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which

are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets of groups of assets {cash- generating

unit} Non- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at the end of reporting period.

Provisions

Provigions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resutt

of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the armount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the

existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-pccurrence of one of more uncertain

future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past

events where it is either not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation

or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. These Financial Statements are presented in
Indian Rupee.

For The Phosphate Co. Luw.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

k}

b

m)

Transg_ctions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Gains & losses arising an account of réalization are accounted
for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Monetary Assets & Liabiltties in foreign currency that are oulstanding at the year end are transiated at
the year end exchange rates and the resuitant gainfless is accounted for in the Statement of Proft &
Loss.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Caesh Equivalent in the batance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Pjan

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees, where the Company has no further obligations.
Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to
a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in india, compnsing of Gratuty fund with an
approved trust. The Company's liability 8 actuanally determined using the Projecled Unit Credit method
at the end of the year in accordance with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefis.

The CGompany recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset
or liability Gains and losses through re- measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are
recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit ¢r loss in subsequant
periods.

The Company recognises the changes in the net defined benefit obligation like service costs comprising
current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on cuntailments and non-routine settlements
and net interest expense or income, as an expense in the Statement of Profit gnd Loss.

Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related
services are rendered.

Other long term employee benefits

The Company treats accumulated leaves expected to be carned forward beyond twelve months, as tong
term employee benefit for measurement purpeses. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for basad on the actuarial vaiuation using the projected unit credit methed at the end of each financial
year. This benefit is not funded. Actuarial gainsflosses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit
and Loss and are not deferred.

8Bortrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also inciudes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

For The Phosphate Co. Lig.

Lheordlow

Shankar Banerjee
Company Bacoaiary
ACH 2073
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes fo Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018
n) Income Taxes

Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss except to the extent that it relates
lo items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.
Provision for current tax is made at the current tax rates based on assessable income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences anising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their cammying amounts in the Financial Statements except when
the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset ot liability in a transaction
that s not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or less at the time
of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reperting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets angd liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enadied or subsiantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to epply o laxable income
in lhe years in which those lemporary differences are expecied to be recoveret or setlled. The effect
of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense
in the period that inciudes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset
is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not
provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches where it is expected that the
earnings of the subsidiary or branch will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The company
offsets current tax assets and current tax liabiities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts and where 1t intends either to settie on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
seitle the liability simultaneously.

o) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period aftributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rnights issue, share split, and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equily shares ouistanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

p} Recent Accounting Promouncements
ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of implementation of ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers™ which is applicable to it wef 01.04.2018.

Ind AS 21 - The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The amendment clarifies an the accounting of transactions that wiclude the receigt <r payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explains that the date of the transaction, for the
purpose of determing the exchange rate, 1s the date of jmtial recognttion of the non- monetary
prepayment asset or deferred income hability. If there are multipte payments or receipts in advance, a
date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt. The Company is evaluating the impact
of this amendment on its financial statements.

For Tne Phosphate Co. Lid.

Shoveclleut Rowsssr) <2

Shankar Banerjee
Company Seceiary
ACS-45075




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2018

Note 3 Property, plant and squipment (Current Yaar) Amoant in Rs
Desenplion Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
1 Apni Addmions Disposals! 31 March 1 Apnl  Additions Disposals/ 31 March | 31 March 31 March
07 Adjustments 2078 b Adjustments 2018 2ma 017
Freshold land §2.96.27 021 - —  G29827.0H - - = + |629027021 £2.98.27.071
Budding 397066848 835868 2TZROD 39670007 | HO03RY MHIBEMM V14870 4564188 IS005621 37106456
Plart & machmery 71666490 4817883 153483 78330870 | 6716128 68A7HI 145800 13400438 | 62670432 64947362
Computers 29135 20143 = 452731 114077 25,082 - 1,26,1% 3135682 137218
Water & Aocd
Instaftation 133,181 - - 1335 181 41288 227900 - 269248 10,865,435 1293915
Labaratary
Equpment 438026 — - 436026 | 142094 80.632 - 19272% 2,485,300 32593
Fumiture & Fitings 585416 738M 96,355 562932 | 1BMC 206495 958 222761 3,40,186 4 76,606
Motor Cars & Trudks 36’ 14831967 52330 M9223 369,664 262498 454126 138036 1954 1657 76391
Elegine insfaftation 10,056 — ~ 10,056 1,633 1145 - 2778 7.278 842
Total Tangibie
Assels 745453068 72711105 1046016 750619057 | 9567054 1,0328805 006343 1B0BSAME 731620741 714288914
Capiial
WOIK--PAOGH 855 330000 1530823 330000 15,30,823 - - - - 15. 20,623 330,000
Totsl TEATE3060 8741908 376016 752145880 | 9567054 10328605 606343 18380716 1732160564 TIS216814

Note 3 Propefty, plant and equipment [Previous Year)

Description Gross block Accumuiated gdeprecialion Net bloek
1 Apni Addtions  Disposalsf 31 March 1 Apnt  Addfions [Disposals/ 31 March | 31 March 31 Masch
M6 Adyustments M7 2018 Adpidments 2017 27 £15
Freehold kand 62,98 77.01 -~ - £28827.021 —_ - — ~ |e2sZ7an &9 27,021
Buding 3,92,06,848 - — 39208 B4B - IiOC3m — QG382 | 37106468 3.9206p43
Flant & machinery GE52633 2141158 —_ 7 16,668,480 — 716128 — 6716128 | 64347382 6952534
Compiters 2,257 25515 — 251,26 — 114077 - 114077 17 N8 225,700
Waler & Acd
Ingtallation 123072 292558 160449 1335181 — 2379 18,75 41266 1293915 123,072
Laboratory ]
Equipmient 438,026 - - 438,026 — 112064 - 112084 B3R 438,026
Furndure & Fimngs B5337 116218 184119 585416 — 283961 175141 108810 4,76,506 68337
Molor Cars 5 Trucks 11.336% - - 11,3363% — 360664 - 3,665,664 75397 11,336%
Eisctnc Lnstaliation 10065 - - 10,056 - 1633 — 1,633 BAZ3 10,056
Total Tangiie
Asseis 74251080 2575447 372568 744453968 — 928920 361866 9667054 734886914 742251088
Capital
work-IN-progress 470459 330000 479469 3,306,000 - — - - 330,000 479488
Tetal MTIHE KB 25T TLHBIE - 92BN 361,800 SH67H4 7352169 747730588

For The Phosphate Co. Lid. ‘

Shankar Ranerjee
Company '.je.c:».f_atr..ry

ACE-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Finencial Statements as at and for the yesr ended Mamch 31, 2018

Note 4 Investments - Non Current

Investments carrled at Cost (Unquoted)

investments in Equity Instruments

In Subsidiaries
Abhinandan Goods Pvi. Lid.
2,40,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/~ each
Investments carried at Amortised Cost (Unquoted)
Investments in Government or trust securities

National Savings Certificate
Total

Note 5§ Loans - Non Current

Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
{Unsecured, considered good)

Securty deposits
Tota!

Nota 6 Deferred Tax Assel (Net)
Deferred Tax Assets
Losses/ Unabsorbed Depreciation
under Income Tax

Expenses allowable against taxable
income in future years

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Timing difference in depreciabte assets

Total

Note 7 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable vatue)
Raw Materials
Packing Materials
Stores 8 Spare Parts
Finished Goods (including WIP}

Total
Note 8 Investments - Current

Investment carrled at falr value through Profit & Loss

{at fair value NAV}

Investments in Mutual Funds {Unquoted)
Nil {3758 90 units} Biria Sunhfe Cash Pius Collection
Nil (734.45 units) ICICI Prudential Liquid Plan- Growth

Nil (286.50 units) UTI Liquid Cash Pian
Nil (24,328.76 units) SBI Dynamic Bond Fund Growth

396.142 units Reliance Money Manager Fund Growth
Total

As at

March 31,2018

As at

March 31,2017

Amount in Rs

As at
April 01,2016

24,086,000 24,065,000 24,06,000
26,000 26,000 26.000
24,32,000 24,32,000 24,32,000
46,13,033 46,61,249 48,28,479
46,13,033 46,641,249 48,28 475
1,22,80,384 2,21,35,3588 2,39,24,835
25,61,510 = =
(1,04,59,136)  {1,28,18,167) {1,28,53,494)
4382758 93,18 231 11071 344
7,80,63,974 5.67.85.016 10,00,93,049
23,75,245 28,00,568 20,31,155
1,07.00,582 111,25,738 1,10,68,732
2,08.25,178 2,72.39,443 4.97.74.236
14,19,64.979 9,79,50.765 16.29.67.172
9,172,548
1,62.168
7,09,556

5,00,6865

9,48 950

9,48,950 5,00,686 17,84,271

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Shordt

Shankar Banerjee

/A

2 __

Company Secretary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements as &t and for the ysar snded March 31, 2018
Amount in Rs

As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016

Note 9 Trade Receivables
{Unsecured, considered good)}
Financiai Assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables-Market 6,22,27,138 5,36,93,345 8,17.78,253
Subsidy receivable from Central Government 14,16,40,740 17.10,65,655 22,15,84 870
Total 20,38,67,878  22,47,59,000 30,2373,123

Note 10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Assets carried at amortised cost

Balance with banks 53,200 50,076 77,889
Cash on hand 448,748 425,088 3,864,723
Total 5,01,%48 475,178 4,62,612

Note 11 Other Bank Balances

Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
Fixed deposits having ariginai maturity 1.17,36,970 96,17,310 1,78,20,660
maore than 3 months but less than
12 meonths (piedged)

Total 1.17,36,970 96,17 310 1,79,26,660

Note 12 Leoans- Current
{Unsecured, considered good)
Financial Assets carried at amortised cost

Advances t¢ Subsidiary 4,19,35.000 4,19,38,000 5.06,85,000
Advances to Employess 45,000 47,000 33,000
Total 4,19,80.0C0 4.19,82,000 5.07.18, 000

Note 13 Other Financial Assets- Current

{(Unsecured, considered good)

Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
Interest Receivable

From Banks 4,94 497 3,058,650 10,93,835
From Others 217,51 213,148 2,36,183
Other Advances 4,76,89,980 4.63,80, 828 5,15,73,806
Total 484,01 994 468,949,727 5,29,04,025

Note 14 Current tax assets {Net)
Advance income tax (net of provision) - 2'5631216 13,086,793
Total — 2.56.216 13,086,793

Note 15 Other Current Assets
{Unsecured, considered good}

Advance to suppliers 7,64,498 26,01,871 4,10,701
Advances against expenses 27,5221 30,72,614 30,02,685
Prepaid expenses 17,114,699 20,78,980 25,05,022
Input tax receivable 2,18,18,637 3,33,105 3,45,291

Total 2,70,50,045 80,856,570 62,63,699

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.
Shankar Banerjee

Company S‘ec.f.e‘tary
ACS-4BUTS




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Ststements as st and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs

As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
Nota 16 Equity share capital
Authorised capital
1.00.00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 10.06.00,000 10,00,00,600 10,06,00,000
10,00,00,000 10,60.00,000 10,00,00,000
Issuad, subscribed and Pald-up capital
36,07,480 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,60,74,800 3,60,74.800 3.60,74,800
3,60,74,800 3,60,74,800 3.60,74,800
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
No of Amount Ng of Amount No of Amount
shares shares shares
Equity shares at the
baginning of the year 36,067,480  3,60,74800 3607480 35074800 23607430 3,60,74800
Add Share issved during the year = - -_ = = =
Equity shares at the end of the year 36.07.480  3.60,74,800 3807480 36074800 3607480 3,60,74 800
b) Rightsipreferences/restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Each holdar of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.in the event of liquidation of the Company, the hoiders of equity
shares wiil be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferenttal amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehoiders.

¢) Detaiis of ahareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As on 31 March 2018

As on 31 March 2017 As on 1 April 2018

No of % of No of % of No of % of
shares holding shares holding shares holding
Madhav Trading Corpn. Ltd. 3,74,880 10.38 3,74,880 1038 3,389,880 9.42
Shrivats Khaitan 2,31,600 640  2,31,000 6.40 55,000 152
Life Ingurance Corporation of India 1,89,240 525  1.89.240 525 1,89,240 5.25

For The Phosphate CO- Lid.

Sleoflar Booery

o2
Shankar Ranerfee
Company Sew atary
ACS-450773




Note 17 Other Equity

Securities Premium
Cpening Balance
Addition during the Year

General Reserve
Opening Balance
Addition during the Year

Retained Earnings
Opening Balance
Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Belance
Addition during the Year

Total

Note 18 Borrowings {Non Current}

THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
fNotes to Financial Statements ma at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount In Rs

Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost

Secured
Term igans from bank

Vehicle loans from banks

Unsecured

From Limited Companies
Frem Related Parties

From Cthers
Total

As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
2,.62,50,000 2,62,56.000 =
2,62 50,000 2.62,50,000 2,62,50,000
84,60,34,254 64 80 34,254 -
64,60,34,254 64 60,34,254 64,60,34,254
{2,60,41 154) {3,08,91,691) —
1,53,73.432 48,50,537
(1,06,67,722) {2,60,41,154) {3.08,91,691}
(6,84,030} 2,33,000
{10,46,225) (9,17,030)
(17.30,255) (€,84,030) 2,33,000
65,98,86,277 64,55 59,070 64,16,25,563
— - 1,15,00,000
16,52,050 8,34.818 10,47,386
8,50,00,000 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
1,50,00,000 -— =
10,18,52,050 10,08,34 818 11,2647 386

Term Loan from Bank is secured by first charge on factory land and buitding and entire fixed assets of the
company & collaterly secured by second charge on current agsels of the company. Current Interest rate is 13.10%

Vehicle Ioan is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of cars purchased under the scheme. Current

Interest rate s 220-11.20%

Note 19 Other financtal liabilities - Non Current
Financial Liabilities carcled at amortised cost

Deposit from Dealers
Total

1,24,74,768

1,25,73,763

1.25,67,943

1,24,74,756

1,2573,763

1,20,67.943

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Shewds BM'Q

Shankar Banerjee

Compan Seciatary
ACS-48073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Nates to Financial Ststements = at end for the year ended March 31, 2018
Amount It Rs

As al As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31.2017 April 01,2016

Note 20 Provisions - Non Current
Provisons for Employee Benefits
Leave Fncashment 29 18,198 2477 350 44 53 255

Total 2918196 24,77,350 44,53,255

Note 21 Borrowlngs - Current
Financlal Llabllities carried at amortised cost

Secured
From Banks
Cash Credit 17 21,48 417 10 32 39,251 14,79 71 537
Buyers Credit in Foreign Currency — - 176.06,498
Unsecured
From Limited Companies
From Related Parties 87.50,000 4,64,50,000 9,13,50,000
From Cthers 3,43,00,000 9,83,00,000 8,33,00,000
Total 21,51,68 417 24.75.85,251 34,02,28 035

Cash Credit Loan from Bank 18 secured by entire stocks of invenlory, recevables and pther current assets of
the company on par-passu hrst charge basis & coilateraily secured by Second charge on Factory Land & Buikiing.
Current imterest Rate is 12 14.10%

Note 22 Trade payables
Financial Liabilltles carried at amortised cost

Migre, Small and Medium Enterprises - —
Others 12,2114 076 10,15,50,419 15,33,38,927

Total 12.21.14,076 10,15 50419 15,33,38 927

Notes : Disclosure of payables to MSME vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Entarpnse
Development Act, 2006" is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration
of such vendors under the said Act. There are no overdue principal amounts/interest payable amounts for delayed
payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers
during the year or for earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard
in respect of paymenis made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

Note 23 Other financial liabilities - Current
Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost

Current Maturities of Term loans 20,00,000 1,15,00,000 1,40,00,000
Current Maturities of Vehicle loans 4,71,493 2,112,399 1,91,021
Interest accrued and due 82,23,536 58,214,085 82.48,520
Employee Benefits 15.,01,970 10,689,223 B61,089

Financial Liabilities carried at Fair Value
through Profit & Loss

(Gain)/Loss on Fair Valuation of Forward Contracts 2,44 643 (8,389,845} 65,594,600
Total 1.24,41.642 1,78,62,772 3,08,55,230

For The Phosphate Co. L.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Seaciatary
ACSE-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes fo Financial Statsments as at and for the yeer ended March 31, 2018

Note 24 Other current liabilites

Advance from customers

Duties & Taxes
Employee related payables
Statutory & other dues payables
Liabiility for expenses

Total

Note 25 Provisions - Current
Provisons for Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment

Total

Note 26 Current Tax Liabflities (Nat)
Provision for Income Tax { Net of Advance Tax)

Total

Note 27 Other income
Interest income on

Fixed Deposits

Others
Profit on sajes of Property, plant and equipment
Liability no longer required wrillen back
Insurance claim received
Profit on Redemption of Mutual Fund
Gain on measuring investments at FVTPL
Scrap Sales

Total

Note 28 Cost of Material Consumed:
Raw Materials
Packing Malesials

Total

Note 29 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Stock-in-Trade and Work-In-Progress
Closing Stock

tess . Opening Stock
Balance
Add . Increase / {Decrease) in Excise Duty

Total

Amount It Rs

As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
64.01.8580 61,23,482 40,086,774
-— 1,686,069 1.52.600
1,04,90,688 21,983,869 25,08,574
77,13,098 B8,68,550 2,04,03676
246,05 675 1,51,50,950 2,70,71.624
26,61, 849 20,83.650 _
26,61,849 20,83,650 —
10,43,380 —_ —_
10,43,380 1 —

For the year ended
March 31,2018

For the year ended

March 34,2017

10,66,835
37,819
56,990

6,32,379
46,673
8,312
48,264
4.44 570

23,40,841

32,57.81,979
1.61,40,506

34,18,32,485

20825178
{2,72,39,443)

(64,14,265)

(64,14,265)

¢ o The Phospnate <

14,08,368
51,885
6,918
1,58,661
40,642
65,819
666
19,60,750

36,093,749

26,83,60,485
1.43,46,920

28,27,07 415

2,72.39,443
(4,97,74,236}

(2,25,34,793)
(64,428)

{2.25,99,221)

9. Lid.

Lo I3

Shankar
Gompan\’

Banerjee
ancretany
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements aa at and for ths year onded March 31, 2018

Note 30 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus

Swaff welfare

Contribution te Provident & other funds

Total

Note 31 Finance costs
interest

Bank charges
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation

Other Charges
Total

Note 32 Other expenses
Consumption of Steres and Spares
Power and Fuel Expenses
Repaire to ;| Building
Machinery
Others
Manufacturing & Supervision Charges
Storage & Handling Expenses
Packing Expenses
Freight, Delivery Expenses
Seliing Expenses
Rent
Rates and Taxes
Payment to Auditors . Audit Fee
Certification Fee
Legal & Professional Expenses
Director's Fees | Board Meeting Fee
Audit Committee Fee
information & Technology Expenses
Insurance Charges
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Maintenance Expenses
Misceltaneous Expenses

Total

For the year ended
March 31,2018

Amount in Rs

For the year ended
March 31,2017

2,14,25,379
31,862,579
28,70,634

2,74,58,592

4,88,67,586
33,15,782
{14 24 204}
1,00,000

5.08,59,165

78,52,820
2,15,85,269
9.69,308
6,44,48/¢
3.06,199
1,30,09,405
1,75,50,689
47.72,667
7,38,39,129
1.04,38,201
5,20,400
10,69,181
50,060
60,878
28,786,777
3,40,000
1,28,000
59,419
3,48,982
12,111,661
21,40,855
28,562,067

16,26,26,409

ror The Phosphata Cu. L.

2,00,56,183
29,36,095
16,562,969

2,46,45 247

5,77,78,564
43,03.849
48 99 478
192,600

6,71,73,891

51,48,532
1,74,97,541
6,78,164
SRS SEE
2,63,688
1,05,53,206
1,91,398,220
38,15.329
7.16,08,422
1,07,25,913
4,35,938
16,92,373
37,850
39,105
32,985,357
1.20,000
40,000
68,024
4,11,642
11,10,801
21,828,648
44,10,615

15,38.00,061

Cheauflews R
Shankar Banerjee
Companv Sacratary

So-5L073
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Finencial Gistemsats a3 ai snd for the year ended March 31, 2014

31 March, 2018

Amounl In Rs
31 Mareh, 2017

Note 33 Effective tax reconcillation
Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Gurrent Tax 4,07, 113 -
Deferred Tax 49,36,473 17,52, 110
Total Income Tax Expense recognised in the current year 63,43,586 17,52,110
The income tax expense can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows :
Profit before fax 2,17,17,018 66,02,647
Appiicable tax rate 33.06% 30.90%
Computed Tax Expense 71.80 298 20,40 218
Tax effect of :
Benefit on account of unabsorbed losses under ncome Tax {98,55,014) (17.89 437}
Timing difference in respect of expenses allowed under Ingome Tax 26.74,716 {2,50,781})
Liability under Minimum Alternate Tax 14,07,118 —_
Current Tax Provision (A) 14,07,113 —
Reversal of Deferred Tax Assel on unabsorbed iosses under incame Tax 98,55,014 17,898,437
Deferred Tax Asset on items allowed on payment basis (49 18 541) (37 327
Deferred Tax Provision (B) 49,386,473 17,52,110
Tax expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss (A+B) 63,43,586 17,862,110
Effective Tax Rate 28.21 26.54
Note 34 Earnings per equity share
Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1,53,72,432 48,50.537
Weighted average number of equity shares 36.07.480 36.07.480
Eamings per share - Basic and Diluted 428 134
Nota 35 Contingencies and Commitments
{to the extent not provided for)
i} Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company/disputed liabilities
not acknowledged as Debis
Particulara 3% March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Apth 2018
Entry Tax — 77.11,036 57,91,365
Income Tax matter under appeal in respect of TDS
gdeposit for AY. 2007-08 before C.ILT. (A) — 271,910 271,910
Total -— 79,82,946 60,63,275
W Guarantees given N
Guarantees given by the Company
not acknowledged as debt 1,998,660 1,998,660 1,998,660
Total 1,99 680 1,958,660 1,989,660
Ity Commitments o m—
Commitment of Capital Expenditure not provided
for in the accounts (Estimated) 5,70,000 23,20.000 26,70,000
Total 5,70,000 23,20,000 26,70,000

<h
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial §tatements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs

Note 36 Employee Benefit Obligations

n

)

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to defined contribution pian,
recognized are charged off during the year as foliows :

Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Empioyers’ Contributron to Provident Fund 12,683,473 10,70,386
Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity is paid to employees under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 through a recognised funded scheme.
The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial vatuation using Projected Unit Credit Method,
which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitliement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Gratuity Accumulated Leave
Tunded Unfunded
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
.18 2177 2018 017

(i) Amount recognised in the statement

of profit and less is as under:

Current service cost 713131 B 36,325 389 168 1,12 146

Interest cost (30,196} (1.20,341) 3,486,367 3.04,420

Actuarial lossi{gain} recognized during the year — - 466,988 1,992,908

Amount recognized in the

statement of profit and loss 6,82,935 515,884 12,02,521 6,18.472
{iij} Changes in Present Value Obligation

Present value of defined benefit abligation

as at the start 1.29,73,221  1.21,33,208 4561000 44 53 255

Cuirent service cost 7.13,131 6,358,325 3,89, 168 112,148

Interest cost 9,80,172 8,18,896 3,486,367 3.04,420

Actuarial loss/{gain} recognized

during the year 11,75,581 10.60.971 4,66,987 1,998,906

Benefits paid (6,51,693) (16,76,179} (1,83,476) (5,08,727)

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation

as at the end of the year 1,51,90,382 12973221 55,80.046 45 81,000
{iii)Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets

as at the start of the year 1.30,37,000 1.29,55,000 —— —_

Return on plan assets 1,29.326 1.43.941 - -

Inferest income 10,10,368 9,39 238 — —

Actuarial loss/{gain) = = =

Contributien 17,060,060 6,75,600 — —

Benefits paid (6,51,693) (16,76,179) (1.83,476) --

Fair value of plan assets

as at the end of the year 1,562,25001 1,30,37 000 — —

For The Phosphate Co. L0,

Chowrtlor 3
Shankar Banerjeé
Company Secretary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statemants a» st snd for the year ended March 31, 248

Reconcillaion of present value of
defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets

Funded Status

Present value obligation

as al the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets
as at the end of the year

Net liability/(asset) recognized
in balance sheet

Amount recognised in the statement
of Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarigl Gainf{Loss) for the year on PBO
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year on Asset
Return on Plan Assst, Extluding interest Income

Unrecognised actuarlali Gain/{Loss)
at the end of the year

Breakup of Actuarial gain/loss:
Actuarial Gainf{ioss) on arising from
change in demographic assumption

Actuarial Gain/{Loss) on arising from
change in financial assumption

Actuarial Gain/Loss) on arising from
experience adjustment

Assumptions
Financial Assumptions
Discount rate p.a.
Rate of increase in salary p.a.
Demographic Assumptions
Attrition Rate
Super Annuation Age
Average expected future service

Amount in Rs

Gratuity Accumulated Leave
Funded Unfunded

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

208 2017 2018 2017
34,619 63,779 —_ —_
151,890,382 1,29.73.221 55,80.046 45.61.600
15225001 1,30,37.000 —_ —
— - 55,80,046 45,61,000
1,82,391 (2.54.664) = =
{13,57,842)  (8,06,307) — —
1,289,326 1,43,941 — —
(10.46,225) (9,17,030} — —
1,682,391 {2,54.664) — —
(13,57,942) {8,08,307) —
7.75% 7.25% 7.75% 7.25%
7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
58 Years 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years
6 Years € Years & Years 6 Years

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers.
Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic
markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obiigalion. Other assumptions

are based on management's histoncal expenence

Eor The Phosphate Co. Lw.

Shevaflas Bovana
Shankar Banerjee
Company Secietary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Nates to Financial Statemenis as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptiona for the determination of the define benefit obligation are discount rate, expected
salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have determind based on reasonably possible
changes of the assumptions occuring at the endof the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions
congtant. The resull of sensitivity analysis is given below

Amount in Re

As at 31 March 2018 As at 3 March 20§7
Sensltivity analysis for Gratuity

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount Rate {-/+ 0.5%) 1,50,16,300 1,53,72,818 1,28,01,326  1,31,53,938
% Change Compared (o base due lo seneilivity -1 15% 1 20% -1 33% 1 39%
Salary Growth {-/+ 0.5%) 1,53.71,451 1,50,15986 1,31,51,862 1,2801715
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 1.19% -1.15% 1.38% -1.32%
Aftrition Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 151,893,724 1,51,87,040 12976075 1,29,70,367
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.02% -0.02% 0.02% —0.02%
Mortalily Rale {4+ 10%) 1,52,16,509 15184255 1,2597.870 1,29.48,572
%Change Compared to base due to sensiivity 0.17% —0.17% 0.19% -0.19%
Sensitivity analysis for Accumulated Leave As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

Increase Decrease increase Decrease
Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 54,950,365 56,765,135 4482 323 46,44 466
%Change Compared io base due to sensitivily -1.81% 1.70% -1.73% 183%
Salary Growth {-/+ 0.5%) 56,74,458 54,90,183 46,43,508 44 82,505
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 1.69% -1.61% 1.81% -1.72%
Aftrition Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 55,682,278 55,77,.814 45,62,824 45,59,176
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity —0.04% —0.04% 0.04% -0.04%
Mortality Rate {-/+ 10%} 55,92.54% 55,67,543 45,71.673 45 50,327
%Change Compared to base due (o sensitivity 0.22% 0.22% 0.23% —0.23%

The Sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual ¢change in the defined benafit
obligation as It is unlikely that the change in the assumplions would oceur in isolation of one ancther as some
of the assumptions may be correiated.

There i no change in the method of valuation for the prior period.
Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period:
Gratuity 2017-18
The Company's best estimate of contribution during the next year 2,111,429

SESTLA T
/’S‘Jﬁ/ﬂ:‘\?&'\a For The Phosphale Co. L.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notea to Financial Statemenfs s ot and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs
Allgcation of Plan Allocation in % of Pian
Asset (Rs.) Asset
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Funded)
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Mareh
2018 2017 2018 017
Table Showing Allocation of Plan Asset
at the end
Cash & Cash Equivalents 7.03.404 12, 14,730 4.62% 9.32%
Special Deposit Scheme 5,18,833 5,19,833 341% 3.99%
State Government Securities 82,40,090 72,71,840 54.12% 55.78%
Government of India Securities 2,.01,250 2,071,250 1.32% 154%
Corporate Bands 45 50,065 34 08.315 30 54% 26 14%
Debt Securities 2,165,000 —_ 1.41% —
Qther 6,85 358 4,21,032 4.57% 323%
Total 1,52,25000 1,30,37,000 100.00% 100.00%

Note 37 A part of Land and Building thereon has been sold to the company's wholly owned subsidiary
M/s. Abhinandan Goods Pvt Lid. Execution of Conveyance Deed is pending for necessary compliance.

Note 38 The Company has preferred an appeal before High Count Kolkata against dismissal of writ pettion earher
filed by the Company for recovery or Freight Rebats.

Note 39 Financial instruments and other related disclosures

i. Capital Management
The Company's capital management is driven by it's policy to maintain a sound capital base to support the
continued development of its business The Board of Directors seeks to maintain & prudent balance between

differert components of the company's capital.
Tha Management maonitors the capital structure and the net financial debt at individual currency level. Net
financiai debt is defined as current and non-current financiai liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
shart term investments
The debt equity ratio highlights the ability of a business to repay its debts. As at 31st March, 2018, the ratio
was 0.4516

Amount in Rs

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Equity Share Capital 3,60,74,800 3.60,74,800 3.60,74,80C
Other Equity 65,98,86,277 64,55,59,070 64 16,25 563
Total Equity (A) 69,59,61,077 68,16,33,870  67,77.00.363
Non-Current Borrowings 10,16,52,050 10,08,34,818 11,25,47,386
Shart Term Borrowings 02 . 58,63,446 26,56,22,745 36,36,67,576
Total Borrowings (Gross Debt) (B) 32,/5,15,496 36.64,57,563 47.62,14,962
Less. fnvestments (9.48,950) {5,00,686) (17,84,271)
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents {5,01,948) {4,75,175) {4,62,612)
Less: Other Bank Balances (1,17,36,970) (96,17,310} {1.79,20,660)
Net Debt (C) 31,43,27 628 35,58,64,392 45,60,47 419
Net Debt to Equity (C/A) 0 4516 0.5221 C8725

For The Phosphate Co. L.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as &t end for the yeer ended March 31, 2018

Amount In Rs
Disclosures on Financial Instruments
1) Financial Instruments by Category
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars Amortised  Fair Value Total Total Fair
Cost through PL Carrying Value
Value
Financial Assets
Investments 26,000 9,48 950 8.74,950 9,74,950
Trade Receivables 20,38,67,878 — 203867878 20,3867,878
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.01,948 — 501.548 5.01,948
Other Bank Balances 1,17,38,970 — 1,17.36,870  1,17,36,970
Loans 4,65,93.033 — 4,6%,93,033 465,893,033
Other Financial Assets 4,84, 01,994 —_ 48401994 48401984
Total Financial Assets 31,11,27,823 9,48,95C  31,20,76,773 31,20,76,773
Finaneilal Liabilities
Borrowings 31,68,20,467 = 31,68,20,467 31,68,20,467
Trade Payables 12,21,14 076 — 12,21,14.076 12.21,14,078
Cther Financial Liabilities 2,46,71,755 2,44 643 2,49,16,398 2,49,16,358
Total Financial Liabilities 46,36,06 268 2,44 843  46,38,50,941 48,38,50,941
As at March 31, 2017
Particulars Amortised  Fair Value Total  Total Fair
Cost through PL Carrying Value
Financial Agsets
Investments 26,000 5,00,686 5,26 666 5,26,686
Trade Receivables 22,47,59,000 — 22,47,59.000 22 47,589,000
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 475175 _ 4,75175 475175
Other Bank Balances 96.17.310 — 95.17,310 86.17 310
Loans 4 66 43,249 — 468643249 466,43 249
Other Financial Assets 4,68,99,727 - 4,68,99,727 4,68,99.727
Total Financial Assets 32,84,20, 461 5,00,686 32,8821.147 328921147
Flnancial Liabilities
Borrowings 34,88,24,069 — 34,68,24,0689 34,808,244 068
Trade Payables 10,15,50,419 — 10,15.50,449 10,15.50,419
Other Financial Liabilities 3,12,76,480 (8,39,945) 3,04,36,535 3.04,35,535
Total Financial Liabilities 48,16,50,958  (B,39,945) 48,08,11,023 4B,08,11,023

For The phosphate Co- Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financlal Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2014

As at April 01 2016 Amount in Rs
Particulars Amortised  Fair Value Total Total Fair
Cost through PL Carrying Vaiue

Value

(i)

Financia! Assets

Investments 28,000 17,84,271 18,10,271 18,10,271
Trade Receivables 30,33,73,123 —  30,33,73,123 30,33.73,123
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,62612 - 4,62,612 4,62 612
Other Bank Balances 1,79,20,660 - 1.79,20,860  1,79,20,660
Loans 5,565,46,479 -— 5,98.46479 555 46,479
Other Financial Assets 9,29,04,025 —_ 528,04,025 52904025
Total Financial Assets 43,02,32,899 17.84,271 43,2017, 170  43,20,17,170
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 45,27 75,421 = 452775421 452775421
Trade Payables 15,33,38,927 — 15.33,38,927 15,33,38,927
Other Financial Liabilities 3,68,68,573 65,54,600 43423173  4,34,23,173
Total Financiat Liabilities 64,29,082 921 6554600 64,9537 521 64,95,37 521

Fair value hierarchy

All Financial Assets & Financial Liabllites are carried at amortised cost except Current Investments and Foreign
Currency Future Contracts, which have been fair valued.

Level 1 — Quoted (adjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabitities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
ts directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
s unphservable.

The fellowing table represents the fair valye heierarchy of Financia! Assets and Financial Liabilites measured
at Fair Viaiue on a recurring basis

Particulars Fair Valua 31 March 31 March 1 April
Hiararchy 2018 2017 2016
Level
Financial Assets
Current Investments Level 1 9,48,950 5,00,688 17.84,271
Derivative financial instruments -
Foreign Cuirency Forward Contracts Level 2 244,643 (8,39,945; 65,54,600

(il Financial risk management obfectlves and policies

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, liquidity risk & credit risk which
may adversely impact the fair vaive of its financial instraments. The Company's focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

(A) Market risk

Market risk comprises interest rate risk & foreign currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings in foreign currencies

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notss to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018
(a) Interest rate risk
The Company 1s exposed to interest rate risk because the Company borrow funds both at dixed and floating
interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and

floating rate borrowings. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long term debt obligations with flogting interest rates

The sensitivity analyses below have been determinad based on average floating rate liabilities outstanding
as on begining and end of the reporling period. A S0 basis points increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management persennel and represents management's assessmant
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higherflower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company's loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 would decreasefincrease by Rs 16,99,571 (for the
year ended March 31, 2017. decrease/ ingrease by Rs 20,638,757)

{b) Fereign currency risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair vaiue of future cash flows of an exposure wili fluctuate
because of changes n foreign exchange rates. The Company's exchange rate rigk exposure is primarity
due to trade payables denominated in foreign currency. The Company is resricting its exposure of risk in
change in exchange rates by way of Forward/Future Contracts.

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Apri! 2016

Foreign Currency Payable
{Amount in USD) 16,13,683 9,586,068 23,47.458
{B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of
liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as
per requirements

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capita! facies from varous banks The
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutuat funds, which carry low market risk

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments

Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
One Year or less

Borrowings 21,51,68417 24,79,89,251 34,02,28,035
Trade Payables 12,21,14,076 10,15,50,419 15,33,38,927
Other Financial Liabiiites 1,24,41,642 1,78,62,772 3,08,56,230
More than One Year

Borrowings 10,16,52,050 10,08,34, 818 11,26,47,386
Other Financial Liabilites 1.24.74 756 1,25.73,7683 1,25,67,043

{C) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counter-party failure to repay or service debt according
to the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk
of deterioration of creditworthiness.

Financial instruments that are subject to credit nsk principally consist of Trade Receivables, Loans
Receivabies, Investiments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Financial Guaraniees provided by the Company.
None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk

For The Phosphate Co. LW,
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Nates to Financial Statements 2s at and for the ysar ended March 31, 2018
The Company has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter parties as a3 means of mitigating the

risk of financial ess from defaults. The Company manages fisks through credit approvals, establishing credit
limis and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms

in the normal course of business.

Note 40 Related Farty Disclosures:
List of Related Partles :
1. Subsidiary

Abhinandan Goods Pvt Ltd.

2. Key Management Personnel
Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur
Shri Ajay Bangur
Shri Shankar Banerjee

3. Directors
Shri Binod Khaitan
Shri Hemant Bangur
Shr Dilp P Goguldas
Smt. Vijaya Mohan

Relation Extent of Holding

Subsidiary 100%

Executive Director & CEQ
President & CFO

Company Secrelary

Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Independent Tirector

Independent Director

4. Entitles over which Directors, Key Manageriat Personnel and their relatives have significant
influence

At Finance & Trade Pwt Lid

Credwyn Holdings India Pvt Lid

Gloster Limited

Joonktolle Tea & Industries Ltd

Kanchan Udyog Lid

Ketitewell Bullen & Co Ltd

Knerapat Vanijya Lid

PDGD Investments & Trading Private Ltd
Devendra Finvest & Hoiding Pvt Ltd
Chintamani Holdings Pvt Ltd

Mari fnvest Biokers Pyl Lid

ior The Phosphate Co. Luw.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Finsncial Statements as at and for the ysar ended March 31, 2018
The following table summarises related-party transactions included in the financial statements for

the year ended March 31, 2018 & March 31, 2017 and details of outstanding balances as on March
31, 2018, March 31, 2017 & April 1, 2016.

Amount in Rs.

Nature ot Transactions Subsidary Kay Entrties Total

(1 Managetial where

Personneal Directors

& Other KMPs and

Directors | relatives have

{2+3) significant

influence (4)
Salary and Other Benefits = 49,20,108 = 49,20,108
— 37,66,012 — 37,686,012

Contribution to Provident Fund

& Superannuation Policy — 12,64,404 — 12,64 404
— 9,60,913 == 9.60.913
Other Perquisites — 16,38,015 = 16,38,015
— 12,564,298 S 12,654,298
Meeting Fees —_ 4,25,000 — 4,25,000
-- 1.60,000 1,680,000
Interest on Loean —_ — 3,01,20,430 3,01,29,430
- — 2,6847,056 2,68 47,056
Loan Taken — — 20,09,00,000 | 20,09,00,000
— - 4,39,50 000 4,38,50,000
Loan Repaid — — 24,38,00,0600 | 24,38,00,000
— — 8 52,550,000 8,52,50.000
Qutstanding Recsivable 4,19,35,000 —_ -— 4,18,35,000
4,19,35,000 —_ — 4,19,35,000
5,08,85,000 — — 5,06,85,000
Outstanding Payable — 11,44,15,579 | 11,44,15,579
— — 1554 713225 { 155473225
— — 199671627 | 190671627

Note : 41
First-Time Adoption of Ind-AS

These financial statements of The Phosphate Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018 have been
prepated in avcordance willl Ind AS Four lhe puiposes of Uansiion 1o Ind Ab, the Company had followed the

guidance prescribed in Ind AS 101-First Time Adoptior of indian Accounting Standard, with April 1, 2016 as the
transition date and IGAAP as the previous GAAP

The transition to Ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial statements, disciosures in
the notes thereto and accounting policies and principles. The accounting policies set out in Nole 2 have been
applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the comparative information.
An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's Balance Sheet
& Statement of Profit and | oss, is set oul in note 41(2) and 41(3). Exempticns on first time adoption of Ind AS
availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 have been set out in note 41(1)

For The Phosphate Cu. L.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements es at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

1 Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind-AS 101

Ind AS 101 allows first time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Company has apptied follawing exemptions in the financial statements:

i} In accordance with Ind AS 101, the Company has elected not to restate business combinations that
occuired before the date of transition ie 1st April 2018. tn view of the same, the Indian GAAP carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised under Ind AS, is their deemed cost
at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition, measurement is in accordance with
respective Ind AS.

i} In accordance with ind AS 101, the Company has elacted to continue with the camying values under
previous GAAP as deemed cost at the transition date ie. Ist April 2016 for all the items of property,
plant and equipment, except freehold lang,

Furiher, the Company had considered fair value of ireehold land based on professional valuation as at
tst Aprit 2016 Accordingly, wamying value of fand is increased by Rs 11,230,68,066 On transition, such
increase in value alongwith balance fying in revaluation reserve has been adjusted in general reserve.

iy Under previous GAAP, investment in subsidiaries were stated at cost and provisions made to recognise
decline, other than temporary. Under Ind AS, the company has elected to regard such carrying amount
as at 31st March 2016, as deemed cost at the date of transition.

for The Phosphate Co. Lia.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Noter to Financial Statements za at snd for the ysar ended Masfch 31, 2018
Mata 41 First-Time Adoption of Ind-AS

2. Reconciliation of equily &y at date of irensition Amount i Rs
Particulars Note 18t April, 2016 31st March, 2017
IGAAP Adjusiments Ind AS Indian GAAP Adjusimenis ind AS
Aggeta
Non curreat assels
2} Property plant
and aquipment 1 62,9153,023 1,30,98,066 | 74225108 62,17.68.847 11,3086.067 | 734886914
b} Capdal work-in-
prograss 479,499 479 499 330 00G 3.20,000
c)  Financial assels
1} Invesimenis 2432 000 2432 000 24,32 000 2432 000
n}  Loans 48 28 479 48 28 479 46 61,245 46.61,248
a4} Delermed tax asyuts
{nef) 110711 30 11071341 931923 9319 231

B4 7964 342 11 30.98 Dé5 76,10 82 408 53 BE 31327 11 30,98 067 7518 29 394

Current asseis

a) Inventofies 18 2867 172 16,28 67 172 97950765 9,79 50,765
b} Financial assets
1) investments 2 14 85,392 298,878 17.84 271 5 00,000 586 5 00 686
) Trade recewables 303373123 30,%3,73123 22,47 59,000 22 47,53 000
11} Cash and Cash
equivaianis 482612 462 612 47517% 4,715,176
] Qther Bank
Balances 1.76.2C 860 1 78.2C,560 96 17,310 96.17.312
v}  Loans 5,07 18 000 5.07.18 D00 4 19 82 000 4,19,82 000
vi} Oiher Financial
Assets 52904025 8,25.04,026 46899727 4,68,99 727
¢y Current 12x assef (Nei) 1306793 1306 793 256,216 256,216
d} Other currenl assets 62.63 g9 62,63,699 80.86 57¢ $0.86 570
557401 477 2 95 B75 54 77 00 465 43,05 2 763 jrer] 435053, 449
Total Assets + 245386819 113386044 | 1358762763 1,06,90,58 090 17 098753 |4 4B 2 Bo M
Equily and Liabllitles
Equity
a) Equily Share capial 3,60,74,600 3,60 74,800 3.60 74 800 36074800
b}  Other equily 182 5282 28,619 11 3396944 64 16 25,563 53 2460317 11,3098,753 64,5559 070

Total Equily altributsble
to equily shareholders
of tha company 564303419 113396944 87 77 00 363 58 85 35 117 11 30 88 753 68 16 33 870
Liabilities

NofeCurrei fiabililieg
al  Fimarcial lab.dlies

1} Borrowings 11 25.47,386 11,25,47,386 100834 B18 10,08 34 818

u)  Othar financigk
liabiitties 4 25 67 943 1.25,67,943 1,25,73,763 1,25 73,763
b) Provisions 44 53 265 44 53 256 24 77,350 24 77 350
129566 584 12,95 68,584 11,58,86,931 11,58,85,931

Curtent liabilities
&) Fnaneial habilities

1) Borrowings 34022803 34 (0228035 24 79 85 261 24 7985 251
1} Trade payabies 16,33,38,527 15,33 38,927 101550 418 101550 419

ui)  Olher financial ) |
hatulitias 208 55 230 3,08,55,230 17862772 17862772
b} Other current habilihies 27071624 270 71624 1 5150 950 1 5% 50950
c}  Provisions 20,83650 2063680
55 14 83 814 55 14 a3 818 38 48 37 042 A8 45 97 042
Total Equity and liebilities 1.24 53 66 819 113396944 11.358762763 |1 05 50 58.090 1 30.86.753 |1.18 21 56 843

For The Phesphate Co. Lid.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Lecietary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Finaticial Statements a3 &t and for the yewr ended March 31, 2018
Notes (comd )

1 Under IGAAF, 1he fixed asgets wete medsuled at £ost In accordance with ind As 101, thy company has fan valued its frea hold land resutbing
in the increase in the carrying value of Property Plant & Equipment.

2 Under previous GAAP currenl mvesiments ware staled at lower of cost and fair value, under Ind AS lhese financial assets have been classified
s fair value through profil or loss on the date of lransition and fair value changas after the date of transition has been racognised in profit or

inss

3. Reconciliation Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under IGAAP to IND AS
Amount in Rs

Particulars Note For the Year endad 31 March 2017
Indian GAAF Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from operations 4 68,33,38,92% (5,20,84,838) |63,03,54,089
Other Income 3 398,917,941 (2,98,192) 36,93 749
i Total Income £8,73,30,858 {5,32,83,028) 63,40 47 838
Cost of Matenal Consumed 28,27.07,415 — | 28,27,07,415
Cost of Trading Goods 6,26,28,918 — 6,26,28,918
{Increase)Decrease of Finished Goods 225,599,221 -— 2.25,98,221
Excise duty on Sale of Goods 4 - 39,61,518 39,61,518
Employee benefit expenses 6 2,55,62,277 (9,17,030) 2,46 45 247
Cther expenses 4 21.07.46,415 (5,69,46 354) | 15,38,00,061
Total Expenses before Interest, Depreciation 60,42 44 246 (5,39.01 888} | 55.03.42 380
Finance Cost 6.71.73,891 6,71.73.8081
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 99 28,920 - 98,28 920
Il Total Expenses 66,13,47,057 | (5,39.01.866) |62,74 45191
Ili Profit{loss) before tax (I~} 59,83,809 6,18,838 66,02,647
IV Tax expense:
(1) Current tax — = -
{?} Deferred tax 17,582 110 — 17,572,110
V  Profiti(loss) for the period (lli-IV) 42 31,689 6,186,838 48,50,537
Qther Comprehensive 'ncome
VI ltems that wili notl be classified to statement of
Profit or Loss — — —
VIl Remgasurements of the defined benefit
liabilities/(asset) -] —_ {9.17,030) (9,17,030)
Total Comprehensive income for the Year 42,31,688 (2,98,192) 38,33.50Q7
Notes

4. Under Ind AS, revenue from saies of goods 18 inclusive of excise duty and are net of sales tax, discounts.

5. Under Ind AS, mutual funds are valued at fair value instead of cost.

6 Under Ind AS, Aciurisl Gainfloss on Gratuty routed through Gther Comprehensive Income instead of Profit & Loss.
Note 42 Correspondln? com;mratlve figures for the previcous lyea:r have been regrouped and reedjusted wherever
considered necassary fa conform to the current year presentation.

For and on behalfl of the Board of Diroctors
For, S. K Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants Binod Khaitan Vijaya Mohan
Firm Registraticn Number: 306033E Director independent Director
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia {DIN 001286502} {DIN 02474421}
Partner
Membership No. 0683851 Surash Kumar Bangur Ajay Bangur
Place: Kolkata Executive Director President & CFC
Dated : 22nd May, 2018 {DIN 00040862}

Shankar Banerjee

Dy. Secrelary

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Sloraler Rovoper

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secietary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
(hereinafter referred tc as “the Holding Company"} and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its Subsidiary
together referred to as “the Group®), comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprahensive income) , the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind
A8 Financial Statements").

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Hoiding Company's Board is respongible for the preparation and presentation of these consoiidalted Ind AS
financial statements in terms of the Compames Act. 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act®) that give a true
and fair view of the consclidated state of affairs (financial position), consolidated profit or loss (finangial
performance including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting fravds and other imeguianties, the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records. relevart to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from malerial misstatement, whethel due to fraud or erfror,
which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consoclidated Ind AS financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibilty is to express an opinion on these consolidated ind AS financial statemenis based on our audil,
While conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the atcounting ang auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and ptan and perform the auda to obtamn reasonable assurance about whether the consobidated Ind
AS financial statermenis are free from matenal mrsstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
consolidated [nd AS. financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmentg, the auditor considers intemal contral relevant to the Holding
Company's preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a trué and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
approprialeness of accounting policies used and the 1easonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Holding Company's Board of Direclors, as well as evaluating the overall presentatiorr of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to Other Matters paragraph below 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Fui i0e ~hosphate Co. Luw.

orflovs Rovuer €2
gShankar Ranerfee

Company Feuistary
ACI-45U73




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Opinton

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accouriting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2018, and their consolidated profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its consolidated cash flows and the consclidated changes
in equity for the year then ended.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financiai statements/financtal information of a subsidiary, whose financiai statements/financiai
information reflect total assets of Rs.952.25 lacs as at 31st March 2018, total revenue of Nil and net cash outfiows
amounting to Rs.1.77 l{acs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other auditor whose repart
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the censolidated Ind AS financial statements,
in so far as it refates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary, and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Agt, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary,
i based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The audit of comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st Maich 2018 prepared in
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards was carried out by the predecessor auditor vide their unmodified
report dated 25th May 2017, whese report have been furished to us by the managemerit and which have been
relied npon by us for the purpose of our audit of the financial results

Our opinion on the consolidated ind AS financial stalements, and our eport on ofher Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, 15 not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliange on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements [/ financial information certiied by the

Management.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements
L As reqguired by Section 143 (3) of the Acl, we report that

a. We have sought and oblained all the infoimation and explanations which to the best of our knowiedge
and behef were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consdiidated ind AS financial
statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consoiidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(S The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules Issued thereunder.

e On the basis of the wrilten representations feceived from the direciors of the Hoiding Comgpany as
on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a direstor in terms of Section
164 (2} of the Act

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A", and

' T Fur the Fihe
y f}‘;%\ﬁ:{\ Sphate Co. ..
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

g. With respect to the other matters (0 be ncluded in the Auditer's Repor in accordance with Rule 14
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

L. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements discloge the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. (Refer Note 35 to the consolidated Ind AS financiat
statements})

fi The Group did net have any material foreseeable losses on long-tdrm contracts including
detivative contracts

i There is no amount which is required to be transferred, to the investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Helding Company.

For, 3. K. AGRAWAL & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registrgtion Number- 306033

{Hemant Kumar Lakhotia)

Place: Kolkata Partner
Dated: May 22, 2018 Membership No: 068851

Annexure -A to the Independent Audilors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controle under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companles Act, 2013 {“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2018 we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reposting of The Phosphate
Company Limited ("the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in India,
as of that date.

Management's Responslibllity for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's management is responsibie for establishing and matntaining internal financial controls tased
on the internal control over financial repoerting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financiat Controls over Financiat
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICA{) These respensibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherenve 10 company's policies, the
safeguarding of s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accurgcy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditore’ Responsibility

Our respongibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audlt of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICA! and deemed
fo be prescnbed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exlent applicable to an audil of internal
financial controts, both applicable to an audtt of tntemat Fimancial Controls and, both tssugd by the Instifute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial contrels over financiai reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secretary
AGS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We beiieve that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reperting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
Teasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the gssets of the company;
(2} provide reasonatle assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipls and expenditures of
the company are being made enly in accordance with authorisations of management and difectors of the company;
and (3} provide reasonable agsurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthtrised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controis over financial reporting, including the possibility
of eollusion or improper management override of controds, material misstatements due to efror or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemnal financial controls bver financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal finanial tontrol over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all materiai respects, an adequate infernal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

the essential components of intemal contral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

QOur aforesaid reports under section 143{3)Ki} of the Act on the adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to 5 subsidiary company, incorporated in
lndia, is based on the comesponding report of the auditor of such company incorporated in India.

For, 5. K. AGRAWAL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number- 306033E

(Hemant Kumar Lakhotia)

Place: Kalkata Partner
Dated: May 22, 2018 Membership No: 068851

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secratary
ACS-45073

For The FPhosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3137 MARCH, 2018

Amount in Ks.

31st March, 2017

Particulars Notes 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2016
ASSETS
1. Non-currant assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 81,31,31,059 81.63,94,232 82,37,64,407
b}  Capital Work-in-Progress 3 1,24.92,958 57.14,596 4,79 499
c) Financial Assets
1} investments 4 26,000 26,000 26,000
iy Loans S 46,13.033 4E 61,249 48,28 479
d) Deferred Tax Asseta (Net) [ 44 84,647 93,90,352 1,10,71,458
83.47 57737 §3.61,86,429 84,01,69,843
tl. Curmrent asseis
a)  lnventories 7 11,19,64,.979 9,79,50,765 16,29,67,172
b} Financial Assets
i) Investments 8 9,48 950 5,00,686 17.84.271
4 Trade Receivables 9 20,64,14,629 22,73,0570 30,61,19.874
il Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 6,05 237 7,585,930 40,58,933
iv) Othar Bank Balances 1 1,17,36,970 96.17,310 1,79,20,660
vj Loans 12 45,000 47 000 33,000
vi) Other Financial Assets 13 4,84,01,994 468,998,727 5.29.04.025
¢} Current Tax Asset (Net) 14 - 2.56,216 13,08,753
d) ©Qther Current Assels 15 2,70,50,045 80,86,570 62,683,699
40,71,67.804 39,14,19,955 56,33 ,60,427
Total Assels 1,24,18,25 541 1,22,76,06,384 1,39,35,30,270
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity
aj}  Equity Share Capral 18 3,60,74,800 3,60, /4,800 3,60,74,800
b)  Other Equity 17 66,01,51.570 54,59,41,394 64,20,87,345
69,62,26,370 68,20,15,154 67.81,62145
B. Liabitities e
I.  Non-Current Liabilities
a} Finanoal Liabilities
i)y Domowings 18 10,16,52,050 10,08,34 818 11,25,47,386
iy  Other Financial Liabilities 18 1,24,74,756 1,25,78,763 12567843
b)  Provisions 20 23,18,196 24,777,350 44 53,258
11,70,45,003 11,58.85,931 12,95,68,584
Il. Current liabliitles
a) Financial Liabilities
)  Bomowings 21 26,55,35,611 29,29,61,625 37,37,28.035
i) Trade Payables 22 12,21,14,076 10,15,50,419 15,33,38 927
m)  Other Financial Labiliies i} 1,24,41 642 1,7862 772 3,08,55230
b)  Other Current Liabilities 24 2.48.57.510 1,52,45,793 278.77,348
¢) Provisions % 26,671,849 20,83,650 -_
d)  Currerd Tax Liabilities {Net} % 10,43,380 - -
42,86.54,168 42,.97,04,259 58,57,99,541
Total Equity and Liabilities 1.24,19,25,541 1,22,76,06,384 1,39,35,30,270
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The zceompanying hotes form an integra! part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For, . K Agrawal 8 Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number. 308033E

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
Partner

Membership No. 068851
Place: Kolkata

Dated : Z2nd May, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Binod Khaftam

Director

{DIN 00128502}

Suresh Kumar Bangur
Executive Owrector
{DIN 00040862}

Vijaya Mohan
Independent Director
{DIN 02474421}

Ajay Bangur
President & CFQ

Shankar Banerjee
Dy. Secretary

For The ~nosphate Co. Lid.

Lhor{led Rovnenten
Shankar Banerjee

Company Secretary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Notes 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
A INCOME
L Gross Sales / Income from Cperations 75,45,72,036 68.73.00.443
Less . Discounts, Rebates 8 Taxes (6.33,83.884) (5.69.46,354)
Revenue from Operations 65,11,88,152 63,03,54,085
It Other Income 27 23,40,841 36,93.880
Total Income 69,35,28,993 63,40,48,069
B. Expenses
It Cost of Materia! Consumed 28 34 19, 32 485 28,2707, 415
Purchase of Trading Goods 7,15,98,839 6,26,28,918
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods,
Stock in Trade and Work-in-Progress 29 64,14,265 225,99 221
Excise Duty on Sale of Goods 593,615 39,61,518
Employes benefit Expenses 30 2,75,85 488 247,51 099
Other Expenses 32 16.26.48 522 15,38.41.879
Total Expenses 61,07,73,214 55,04,90,550
C. Earnings befora interest, Depreciation and Tax
{EBIDTA) (A-B} 8,27.55,778 8,35,67,119
Finance Cost 31 5,08,61,854 6,71,74 658
Depreciation and amortisation expenses zl 1,03,34,605 89,34,920
V. Profit Before Tax 2,15,59,219 64,47 543
V. Tax Expense :
1. Current Tax 14,07,113 -
2. Deferred Tax 48,95 705 16,81.106
Vi. Profit for the year [IV-V} 1,52,56 401 47,65,437
V. Other Camprehensive Income
ltems that will not be classified to statement of
Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities {10,46,225) (9,17,030)
Total Camprehensive Income for the Year (VI1-VH) 14210178 38,49 407
Earnings pet equity sharg = = e w
Basic & Diluted 4.23 1.32
Cash 7.09 4.08
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanyng notes form an miegral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For, 8. K. Agrawal & Co.

For and on bshalf of the Boart of Directors

Chartered Accountants Blnod Khaitan Vijaya Mohan
Firm Registaton Number, 306033E Direcior independent Chrector
{DiM 00128502} [DIN 02474421}

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia

Partner Suresh Kumar Bangur AJay Bangur
Membership No. 068851 Executive Diractor President & CFO
Piace: Kelkata {DIN 00040862}

Dated : 22nd May, 2018
Shankar Banerjee
Dy. Secralary

Fut 1ne Shosphate Co. Lid.

Loarr

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secretary
ACS-45073
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Consolldated Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

a. Equity Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Balance as at 1 April 2016 3,60,74,800
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 2016-17 -
Balance as at 31 March 2017 3,60, /4,800
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 2017-18 -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 3,60,74,800
Reserve and Sumlug Other Total
Gompre- | Other Equity
Secuntes General Retained hengive
Premium Raserve Eamings Income
Balance av at 1 Aprif 28 2,62,50,000 | 646028254 | (3,04,2390%) 233,000 | 64,20,87,345
Profit for the year - — 47 66,437 - 47 66,437
Excess provision writlen back — — 4,642 — 4,642
Other Comprehensive income - - - (9,17,030}) 19,17,030)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 2,62.50,000 | 64,80,28.254 | (2.56,52,830} (6,84,030) | 64.59.41394
Balance as at 1 April 2017 2,62,50,000 | 64,60,28,254 | (256,52 830) {6,84,030) | 64,59,41,394
Profit for the year — - 1.52,56,401 — 1,52,56,401
Other Comprehensive Incoms — - — | (10.46.225) (10,46,225)
Balsnce as at 31 March 2018 2.62,50,000 | 646028254 1 (1,03,96.429) | (17,30,255) | 660151570
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For, B. K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartgred Accountants Binod Khaitan Vijaya Mchan
Firm Regisiralron Number. 306033E Director Independem Director
{DIN 00128502} {DiN 02474421}
Hemant Kumar Lakhotla
Partner Suresh Kumar Bangur Ajay Bangur
Membership No. 068851 Executive Directer President & CFO
Place: Kolkata {DIN 00040862}

Dated : 22nd May 2018

Shankar Banerjee
Dy. Secretary

For e vniospnate Co. Liu.

S
Shankar Banerjee
Company Secretary

ACS-45073
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2018

Amount in Rs,
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit beforg Tax 2,05,12,994 55,35,155
Add: Adjustments for Non Cash & Non Opesating ltems
Interest Received (10,86 835) (14,08,398)
Interest Paid 4,88 67,586 5.77.78,564
Depreciation 1,03,34,605 99,34 ,920
Operating Profit before Werking Capital Changes 7.86,48,351 7,18,40,241
Add: Increase MDecragas in Working Capital
Increase in Current Lizbilitias 2,47 54,344 (7.74,12,522)
{Increase)Decrease in Non-Cument/Gurment Financial and other Assets (2,10,34,919]) 66,47 709
Increased(Decrease) n Non-CumentCurren! Financial and ofher Liabihiies 341,824 {19.7G,089)
Decrease in Provision 578,199 20,83,65G
Increase in Investments (4.48,264) 12,83,585
Increase in tnventories (1.40,14,214) 6,50,16 407
Trade & Other Receivables 1,93,90,855 8,48,04 421
95,867,841 B.04,53,165
Cash generated from Operatian 8,82,16,191 15,22.93,408
Direct Tax Paid (1.67,517) 10,52,577
Net Cash flow from Oparating Activities 8,81,08,675 15,33,45,883
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed assets/CWIP {1,39,89,507) {78,10,544)
Sale of Fixed Assets 1,39,673 10,702
Inlerest Received 10,66,835 14,08,398
Net Cash used in Investing Activities {1.27,82,999) (63,91,444)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net Proceads from Borrowinga (2,66,08,782) (9,24,78,978)
Interest Paid (4.88,67.586) (5.77,78,564)
Net Cash uaed in Financing Activities (7.54,76.368) (15,02,67.542)
Net Chenges in Cash & Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) (1.50,693} (33,03.003)
Cash & Cash Equivalents-Opening Ratance 7.55,930 40,58 933
Cash & Cush Equivalents-Closing Belance 6,05,237 7,55,930
# Fixed Daposit having original maturity of over 3 months not included
As per our report of even date attached. For and on bohalf of the Board of Directors
For, 8. K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants Binod Khaitan Vijaya Mohan
Firm Registration Number: 306033E Direclor independent Director
{DN 00128502} {DIN 02474421}
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
Partner Suresh Kumar Bangur Ajay Bangur
Membership No, 068851 Executive Director President & CFO
Place: Kolkata {DIN 00040862}
Dated : 22nd May, 2018
Shankar Banarjge
Dy. Secretary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2018
1. Group Overview

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of The Phosphate Company Limited {"the

Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively, "the Group”) for the year ended March 1, 2018.

The Phosphate Company Limited {("the Company®) is 2 limited company incorperated in India, having its
registered office situated at 14, Netaji Subhas Road, Kotkata. The Company has its shares listed on Calcutta
Stock Exchange (CSE). The Company is primarily engaged in the busginess of farm inputs comprising of
fertiliser, crop protection, speciaity nutrients and organic compost & Acid. The manufacturing unit of the

company is located at Rishra, West Bengal.
List of Subsidiary included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are as under :
Name of Subsidiary Company Extent of Helding
Abhinandan Goods Pvt. Ltd. 100%
2. Significant Accounting Poilicies
a) Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified by Mintstry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013 ("Act") read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standlrds) Rules, 2015, as
amended. These financiai staternents are prepared under the historical cost convention on the scorual
basis except for certain items of agsets and fiabilities which have been messurgd at their fair values.

The Group has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101-
First time adoption of indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting
Principtes generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Adt. read with relevant
Ruies which was the previous GAAP. Reconclliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has

been summarized in Note 39.

b} Basis of Consolidation

The consclidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiary
and have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard for Consclidated Financial
Statements (IND AS 110), prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act'). The

Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

i) The financial staterments of the Group companies are consolidated on a lina-by-ting basis and intra-
group balances and transactions incfuding unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are

eliminated upon consolidation.

i) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary over its proportionate share in the
net assets value at the time of acquisition of stake in subsidiary i3 recognized in the finangiai
statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve a2s the case may be. For this putpose, the company's
share of net worth is determined on the basis of the |atest financiat statements prior to the acquisition
after making necessary adjustments far material events betwesn the date of such financial statements
and the date of respective acquisition. Capital reserve on consolidation is adjusted against Goodwil!
Changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing control

of the subsidiary are recognised directly in equity.

i} Non controlling interest in net profithoss of the subsidiary for the year is identified and adjusted
against income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders’ of the company. Non
controlting interest in net assets of the subsidiary is identified and presented sepafately in Consolidated

Financia! Statements.

Shankar Banerjee

Company Secretary
ACS-45073

For e Facsphate Co. cu.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial! Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

<)

d)

f)

a)

iv) As far as possible the Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like fransactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same
manner as the company's financial statements.

v) The financial statements of the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the
same seporling date as that of the company.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is recognized when all significant rnsks
and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer as per the terms of the contract and
no sgnificant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale of the goods and regarding its collection. Reverue i3 meagured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and includes excise duty angd are net of réturns and allowances, trade discounts,
volume rebates and value added tax and goods and service tax.

Dividend income is fecognized when the Group's right to receive dividend is established. Interest income
is recognized using the effective interest method. All other income are recognized on accruai basis.

Subsidy

Subsidy / Concession receivable on the Company's product are accounted on accrual basis and where
there is a reascnable assurance that such subsidy will be receivable and the company will be able to
comply with the requiremenis altached with its realisation.

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The cost of Property, Plant & Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
assel to its working condition for its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on loans borrowed
specifically for acquisition of capital assets are capitalized til the start of commercial production

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method over the estimategd usefu! lives of assets and are
in line with the requirements of Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, piant and equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date is classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets and the cost of assets
not put to use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital Work in Progress'

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements upon sale
or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit
& Loss. The method of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed ai each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, i appropnate.

Inventories

Inventones are vaiued at cost or net realisable value whichever is kower. Closing stock has been valued
on FIFO basis. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such
inventories to ils location and includes. where applicable. appropriaie overheads based on normal level
of activity.

Net reatisabie value is the estimated seflmg price in the ordinary course of busineds, less estimated cosis
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial [nstruments
Initial recognition and measurement

The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a parly to the contractual
provisions of the instrument All financial assets and liabilittes are recognized at fair value on initial

Foi 1h Friosphate Co. wwe
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

1)

2

3)

4)

h)

recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and finencial liabilities,
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on inltial recognition. Regular
way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement

Non derivative financiai instruments

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial assel is subsequently measured at amorntized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the gontractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset 1s subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it 1s hald
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financiai asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except
for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subgequently measured at
fair valve through profit and loss. For trade and ether payables maturing within one year from the Balance
Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 1o the short maturity of these instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financiai instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracls
to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. Such dernvative financial
instruments are intially recognized at farwr value on the date on which a denvative contract 1s entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange
gains or losses are included in Other Income/Financial Cost.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the finansial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for deregognition under Ind AS
109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's Balance Sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair Value Measureameant

The Croup uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances ahd for which sufficient
datz are avaitabie lo measure fair value, maximizmg the use of refevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of
value, and such value may never actually be realized.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lpwest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

roul 1ne Fhosphate Co. —w.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

1]

k)

i} Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identidal assets or liabilities.

i} Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sighificant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

i) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservabie.

impairment
Impairment is recognized based on the following principles:
Financial Assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required
to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

Non-Financial Assets

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever avents or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amobnt is the higher of an
assets fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assete are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifidble cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash- generating
unit) Neon- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment aré reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a preseni obligation (legal or cbnsiiuctive) as a resull
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to settle the obligation and 2 reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past evenis, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncerain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
evenis where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the aobligation
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Foieign Currency Transactions & Transiations
The functional currency of the Group is Indian Rupee. These Financial Statements are presented in indian
Rupee.

Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Group are accounied at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Gains & losses arising on account of rgalization are accounted
for in the Siatement of Profit & Loss.

Monetary Assets & Liabililies in foreign currency that are outstanding at the yedr end are franslated at
the year end exchange rates and the resultant gainfloss is accounted for in theé Statement of Profit &
Loss.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and gn hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value

Fui 102 -nesphate Cou e
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consolldated Financiali Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

m) Employee Benefits

n)

o}

Defined Contribution Plan

The Group makes contributions towards provident fund to the regulatory authorities to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees, where the Group has no further obligations
Both lhe employees and the Group inake monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal lo a
specified percentage of the covered employee's salary.

Deflned Benefit Plan

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, comprising of Gratuity fund with an approved
frust. The Group's liability i actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credt methed at the end of
the year in accordance with the provision of ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits.

The Group jecogni¢es the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an assel o
lrability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/{asset) are recognized
in other comprehensive income and are not reciassified to profit of loss in subbequent periods

The Group recognises the changes in the net defined benefit obligation like sehvice costs comprising
cument sarvice costs, past- service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements
and net interest expense or income, as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Short term employee benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related
seiviges are rendered.

Othar long term employee benefits

The Company treats accumulated leaves expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long
term empioyee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensaled absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of each financial
year. This benefit is not funded. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit
and 1 o0ss and are not deferred

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Bofrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost aiso includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs,

lncome Taxes

Income tax expense Is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized directly in equity, in which case It is recognized in other comprehensive income.
Provision for current tax is made at the current tax rates based on assessable income.

Deferred income tax assets and liabllities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between
the tox bases of assets and Habuities and thex camying amounts In the Financial Statements except when
the deferred income tax arises from the initiai recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not & business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or lgss at the time
of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 1o the extent
that it is no longer probable Lhal the relaled tax benefil will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Batance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered gr seftied. The effect
of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense

For 11.e Phosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

P}

9}

in the period that includes the enactment or the Substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset
is recognized to the extent that it ks probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not
provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiary and branches where it is expected that the earnings
of the subsidiary or branch wifl rot be distributed in the foreseeable future. The Group offsets current
tax assets and current tax liabilities, where #t has a legally enforceabie right 1o set off the Tecognized
amounts and where it Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assét and settle the liability
simultansously.

Eamings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributatie to the equily
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares butstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstandging during the peried is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a fights issue, share spiit, and reverse share split
(consofidation of shares) that have changed the number of equilty shares duistanding, without a
comesponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customears

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of implementation of ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts
with Customers™ which is applicable to it we.f 01.04.2018

Ind AS 21 — The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that inciude the receipt ar payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explains that the date of the transaction. for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the nohimonetary prepayment
asset or deferred income liability, If there are multiple payments or receipts il advance, a date of
trangaction Is established far each payment or receipt. The Company is evaluating the impact of this
amendment on its financial statements.

For The Phosphale Co. Lid.

Shewrfloer Roveryez
Shankar Banerjee

Company Gepretary
OS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consglidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 21,2018

Note 3 Praperty, plant and equipment (Current Year) Amount in Rs
Deseriplion Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net black
1 Apal Addtiors  Disposais! 31 March 1 Apnil Addmions  Drsposals/ 31 March | 21 March 3 March
2017 Adjusiments p.yl:} 2017 Adjusiments 2018 208 017
Freehcld kand T1.1327.021 - —  T3zron — — - — (TLI3210 M N.270A
Building 39205848 6350068 OT2R00  3A05TOOCT | M1O03AY 2638674 174670 4564185 | 35005691 37106466
Prard & machinery 71679808 4817863 153483 76344180 [ 6725128 689319 145808 13472438 | 62871750 84954680
Compiers 25125 201436 — 452731 114,077 5,062 - 139,13 313582 137,218
Waker & Acid
Installation 133,181 - = 1335181 #1266 227980 — 26924k 106555 1293915
Leboratery
Equipmerd 438026 - - 438026 { 132,084 £0.632 - 15272 245300 325932
Furmiluce & Frings 585416 73,871 96,355 5,62932 108810 205,485 91,538 2,242,767 340,136 4,786,806
Motor Cars & Trucks 133635 1481967 523368 092233 369664 ZE2438 48412% 138.0% 18,54 197 763571
Eleclric instaliation 16,056 - — 10,065 1533 1,145 - 2774 7278 8423
Total Tangible
Assets 825067286 721105 1046016 831 32375 [ 9573064 10334605 908343 1,9001,318 {81,31.3105 81,63,54,232
Capital
Work-In-peograss 57145656 TIOR402 230000 1,24 92 998 - - — — | 124820868 57,14.596
Totat 8316,81,882 14318507 1376016 844825373 | 96573054 10334605 006343 1.9001.314 B256.24 057 82.24 03828

Nole 3 Propetty, plamt and equipment (Previous Year)

Descnplion Gross block Actumulated deprecialion Net binck
1 Apnl Addticns  Disposals! 31 Magch 1 Apnl Addmions  Disposals/ 3% March ] 31 March 31 March
W16 Adjustments mwmr 016 Adjustments 2017 17 2018
Fraehald fand 71122701 - — TR - - — -+ 1711227020 A A327.021
Buitding 3.92,06,846 - - 39206048 —  n0sa —  N003,d | 37106468 29206848
Plant & machinery 69538652 2141156 — 7,16,79,808 — B7TBiA — 6725104 | 64954680 169530852
Computers 2,25 780 515 - 351,25 —  tiaomr - 114,074 1,37.218 2,256,766
Waler & Acid
Instatiation 123,02 292558 1,88,449 13,35,181 — 227981 186715 4,266 1293915 12,31,072
Laboratory
Equipment 43802% - - 438,026 — 112034 - 112,094 JB59% 438,02
Furmiture & Fittings 653317 136218  1E4M9 5.85.416 ~ 283980 175158 1.08.810 4.76.606 653,317
Mator Cars & Trucks H.336% - - 11,5363 — 360884 - 356,664 763971 13365
Electric instalation 10,056 — - 15,056 - 1633 — 1,633 6423 10,056
Total Tengile
Assats 823764407 2575447 3172568 B2 E8.67.788 — WMIN 361,886  9BTIGS (816354232 823764407
Ciapntal
work-ir-progless 479408 5714506 475408 57,14,596 — — — — 57,414,506 479,499
Total 824243906 8280043 852067 63166h.8R2 — 3490 361,866 973054, 1822108628 B24743.906

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as i and for the year andsd March 31, 2018

Note 4 Investments - Non Current
Investments carried at amortised Cost
Investments in Government or trust securities
National Savings Ceftificate

Total

Note 5 Loang - Non Current
(Unsecured, considered good]
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security deposits
Total

Note & Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax Assets

tosses/ Unabsorbed Depreciation
under Income Tax

Expenses allowable against taxable
income in future years

Doferred Tax Liabflities
Timing difference in depreciable assets

Total

Note 7 lnventories
{Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw Materials
Packing Materials
Stores & Spare Parts
Finished Goods {including WIP}

jotai

Note 8 Investments - Current
Investment carried at fair value thiough Profit & Loss
(at fair value NAV)

Investments in Mutual Funds {Unguoted)
Nil {3758.90 unitg) Birta Sunlife Cash Plus Collection

Nil (734.45 units) ICIC! Prudential Liquid Plan- Growth
Nii {286.50 units} UT} Liquid Cash Pian

Nil (24,328.76 units} SBI Dynamic Bond Fund Growth
396.142 units Rehance Money Manager Fund Growth

Total

Amount in Rs
As at As at As at

March 21,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016

26,000 26,000 26,000
26,000 26,000 26,000
485,13,033 46,61,249 48,28 479
46,13,033 46,61,249 48,28.479
1,23,82,273 22206519 2,38,24 952
25,861,510 — =
(1,04,59,136} (1,28,16,167) (1,28,53,454}
44,94 647 93,890,352 1.10,71,458

7,80,63,974 5,67,85,016 10,00,83,049

23,75,245 28,00,568 2031156
1,07,00,582 1,11,25,738 1,10,68,732
2,08,25178 2,72,39,443 4,97,74236

11,19,64,979 9,79,50,765 16,29,67,172
— — 9,12,648

= 1,62,168

— — 7.08,555

— 5,00,686 —

9,48,950 = —
9.48,950 5,00,886 17,84,271

For The Phosgphatt Ca. L.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Finencial Statements as ot and Yor the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs
As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
Note 9 Trade Receivables
{Unsecured, considered good)
Financiali Assets carried at amortised cost
Trade recelvables-Market 6.47,73,889 5.62,40,098 8.45,25,004
Subsidy receivable from Central Government 14,16,40,740 17,10,63,655 22,15,94,870
Total 20,64,14,628  22,73,08,751 30,61,19,874
Note 10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
Batance with banks 1,15,221 2,80,363 36,14,982
Cash on hand 4,980,018 4,759,568 443,952
Total 6,05,237 7,565,930 40,58,933
Note 11 Other Bank Balances
Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
Fixed depesits having original maturity 1,17,36,970 96,17,310 1,79,20,660
more than 3 months but less than
12 months (piedged)}
Total 1,17,38,970 96,17,310 1,79,20,660
Note 12 Loans- Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
Advances to Empioyees 45,000 47,000 33,000
Total 45,000 47,000 33,000
Note 13 Other Financial Assets- Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Financial Assets carried at amortised cost
Iinterest Receivable
From Banks 4,94,497 3.05,650 10,93,938
From Others 2,17.5M 2,113,149 236,183
Other Advances 4,76,89,986 4,63,80,928 5,15,73,206
Total 4,84,01,994 4,68,99,727 5,29,04,025
Note 14 Current tax assets (Net)
Advance incofme tax (net of provision) — 2.56.218 13.08,783
Total — 2,568,218 13,08,753
Note 15 Other Current Assets
{unsecured, considered good)
Advance to suppliers 7.64,498 26,001,871 410,701
Advances against expenses 2752211 30,72614 30.02,685
Prepaid expenses 17,14,699 20,78,980 25,035,022
Input tax receivable _..2,18,18,637 3,33,105 3,465,291
Total 2.70,50,045 B0,86,570 62,63,699

For The Fhosphate Co. Lid.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Finsncisi Statemonts a3 «t and for the year snded March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs

As gt As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 Apiil 01,2016
Note 16 Equity share capital
Authorised capital
1.00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
10,00,0C.000 10,00,00,000 10,00,50,000
lssued, subscribed and Paid-up capital
36,07,480 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3.60,74,800 3,60,74,800 3,60,74,800
- _—— oy — i -
3,60,74,800 3,60,74,800 3.60,74,800
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning end at the end of the year.
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
No of Amount No of Amount No of Amount
shares shares shares
Equity shares at the
beginning of the year 36,07,480  3,60,74,800 3607480 3,60,74800 3607480 36074800
Add: Share msued dunng fhe yeer = = = = = =
Equity shares at the end of the year 3607480 36074800 3507480 236074800 3607480 36074800

b} Rights/preferencesirestrictions attached to equity shares

The company has only ane class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vole per share.in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounits.
The distribution will be m proportion to the number of equity shares heid by the shareholiders.

¢} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As on 31 March 2018

As on 31 March 2017

As on 1 April 2016

No of % of Neo of % of No of % of
shares holding shares holding shares holding
Maghay Trading Corpn. Lid. 3,74,880 1039 3.74.880 16.3¢ | 3,359,880 9.42
Shrivats Khaitan 2,31,000 €40 231,000 6.40 55,000 1.52
Life Insurance Corporation of India 1.89,240 525  1.89.240 525 1,889,240 5.25

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

oo flow Boveenea

Shankar Banerjee

Company Secretary
ACE-45073



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Nates to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 17 Other Equity

Sacurities Pramium
Opening Balance
Addition during the Year

General Reserve
Qpening Balance
Addition during the Year

Retalned Earnings
Opening Batance
Profit for the Year
Excess Provision wntten back

Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance

Addition dwing the Year

Total

Note 18 Borrowings (Non Current)
Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Secured
Term loans from bank
Vehicle loans from banks
Unsacured
From Limited Companies
From Related Parties
from Others

Total

Amount 1n Rs

As at As at A6 at

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 04,2016
2,62,50,000 2,62,50,000 —
? 62,50,000 2.62,50,000 2,62,50,000
64,80,28 254 64 60 28,254 -
64,60,28,254 64,60,28 254 64 60,28,254
(2,56,52,830) {3.04,23,909) —
1,52,96,401 47.66,437 -
— 4642 -
{1,03,96,429) (2,56,52,830) {3,04,23,909)
{6,84,030;} 2,33,000 —
(10.46,225) (9,17.030} —
(17,30,255) (6.84,030) 2,33,000
66.01,51,570 64,59 41,394 64,20,87,345
- —_ 1,15,00,000

16.52,050 8,34 418 10,47,386
8,50,00,000 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
1 50,00,000 —- =
10,16,52,050 10,08,34 818 11,25,47,386

Vehicle loan is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of cars purchased under the scheme. Current

interest rate is 9.20-11.20%

Note 18 Other financlal Hablitles - Non Current
Financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Deposit from Deaters

Totai

1,24,74,756

1,25.73,763

1,25,67,543

1,24,74,756

1,26,73,763

1,25,67,943

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.

Sheraflen

Shankar Banerjee
mpany Secretary
o Ca-45073



THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the ysar ended March 31, 2018
Amount in Rs

As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016

Note 20 Provisions - Non Current

Provisons for Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment 29 18 168 24 77 350 44 §3 265

Total 29,18,186 24,77,350 44,563,255

Note 21 Borrowings - Current
Financia! Liabilities carried at amortised cost

Secured
From Banke
Gash Credit 17,21.18,417 10,32 39,251 14 79 71 537
Buyers Credit in Foreign Gurrency — —_ 1.76 06,498
Unsecured
From Limited Companies
From Related Parties 591,17 194 914,22 374 12,48,50,000
From Others 3,43,00.000 9,83,00,000 8,33,00,000
Total 26,55,35.611 29,20,61,625 37,37,28,035

Cash Credit Loan from Bank s secured by entire stocks of inventory, recervables and other current assets of
the company on par-passu tirst charge basis & cohaterally secured by Second charge on Factory Land & Building.
Current Interest Rate is 12 14.10%

Note 22 Trade payables
Financial Liabliifies carried at amortised cost

Micro. Smail and Medium Enterprises — = m_
Others 12.21,14.076 10,15,50.419 15,33,38,927

Total 12,21,14,076 10,15,50 419 15,33,38,927

Notes : Disclosure of payables to MSME vendors as defined under the *Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006” s based on the information available with Group regarding the status of registration of
such vendors under the said Act.

There are no overdue principal amountsfinterest payable amounts for delayed payments tp such vendors at the
Balance Sheet daie. There are no deiays in payment made to such suppiiers during the year or for eariier years
and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during
the year or brought forward from previous years.

Note 23 Other financial liabilities - Current
Financlal Liabllities carrled at amortised cost

Cument Maturties of Term foans 20,00,000 1,15,00,000 1,40,00,000
Current Maturities of Vehicle loans 4,71,493 2.12,89% 1,91,.021
Term Loan = = =
Interest accrued and due 82,23,536 59,21,095 92,48,520
Employee Benefits 15,01,870 10,69,223 8,611,082

Financia! Liahllities carriad at Falr Value
through Profit & Loss

{Gain)/Loss on Fair Valuation of Forward Contracts 2.44.643 {8,39,945) 65,54 600
Total 1,24,4%,642 17862772 3,08,55.230

For The Phosphate Co ...

Shevadlern Bannner ee.
Shankar Banerjee
Company Secretary
ACE-45973




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notss to Consolidated Financial Statsments as &t and fot the year snded March 31, 2018

Note 24 Other current liabllites
Advance from customers
Duties & Taxes
Employee related payables
Statutory & other dues payables
Liability for expenses

Total
Note 25 Provisions - Current

Provisons for Employee Benefits
Leave Encashment

Total

Note 26 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Provision for Income Tax { Net of Advance Tax)

Tota!

Note 27 Other income
Interest income on
Fixed Deposits
Others
Profit on sales of Property, plant and equipment
Liabiity no fonger required written back
Ingurance claim received
Profit on Redemption of Mutual Fund
Gain on measuring investments at FVTPL
Scrap Sales
Total
Note 28 Cost of Material Consumed:
Raw Materiais
Packing Materials
Total

Note 290 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress

Closing Stock

Less : Opening Stock

Balance

Add : Increase / (Decrease) in Excise Duty

Total

Amaunt In Rs

As at As at As at
March 312018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
64,01,880 61,23,462 40,086,774
- 1,68,069 1,562,800
1,07,36,873 22,82 962 33,08,574
77,418,848 68,71,300 2,04,09,401
2,48,57 610 1,52,45793 2.78,77,349
26,61 848 20.83,600 —
26,61,849 20,83,650 —
10,43,380 — —
10,43,380 — —

For the year endged

March 31,2018

For the year ended

March 31,2017

10,66,835

37,818
$5,890

6,32,3/8

46,673
8,312
48,264

4,44,570
23,40,841

32,57.91,979
1,61,40,506
34,19,32,485

2,08,25,178
(2,72,39,443)

(64,14,265)

(64,14,265)

14,08,398
52,116
6.918
1,58,691
40,642
65,819
686
18,60,750

36,93,960

26,83,60,495
1,43,48,920
28,27,07,415

2,72,38,443
(4,97,74,236)

(2.25,34,793)
(64,428)

(2,25,99,221)

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.

Sk

Lever =

Shankar Banerjee
Company Secretary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consolideted Financial Statemsnts as at end for the yeer sndsd March 31, 2018
Amount in Rs

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Note 30 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,15,51,187 2,01,62,935
Staff welfare 31,63,667 29,386,085
Contribution to Provident & other funds 28,70,634 18,562,969
Total 2,75,85,488 2.47,51,999
Note 31 Flnance costs N _=_p
Interest 4.88,67,586 5.77.78,584
Bank charges 33,18,572 4304614
Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation {14 24 204) 48,99 478
Other Charges 1,040,000 1,892,000
Total 5,08,61,854 6,71,74,656

Note 32 Other expenses

Consumption of Slores and Spares 79,52,820 51,48,532
Power and Fuel Expenses 2,15.,85,269 1,74,97.541
Repairs to . Building 9,68,306 6,78,164
Machinery 6,44, 497 555,593
Others 3,068,199 2,863,688
Manufacturing & Supervision Charges 1,30.09,405 1,05,53,208
Storage & Handling Expenses 1,75,50,699 1,91,38,220
Packing Expenses 47,72.667 38,15,329
Freight, Delivery Expenses 7,38,35,129 7,16,08,422
Selling Expenses 1,04, 38,201 1.07.25813
Rent 5,20,400 4,35,938
Rates and Taxes 10,69,181 16,92,373
Payment to Auditors : Audit Fee 55,750 43,700
Certification Fee 60,878 39,105
Legal & Professional Expenses 26,81,427 32,74,757
Director's Fees | Board Meeting Fee 3,40,600 1,20,000
Audit Commitiee Fee 1,28,000 40,000
Information & Technology Expenses 59,418 68,024
insurance Charges 3,48,982 4,11,642
Molor Vehicle Expenses 12,11,661 11,106,801
Maintenance Expenses 21,40,855 21,88,648
Miscellaneous Expemses 29,63,780 44,31,283
Total 16,26,48,522 15,38,41,879

For The Phosphate Co. Lid.
Shankar Ranerjee

Company “iecratary
A a7 3




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018
Amount in Rs

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Note 33 Effective tax reconciliation
Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Tax 14,07,112 -
Deferred Tax 48,95,705 16,81,106
Total Income Tax Expense tecognised in the current year 63,02,818 16,811,108

The income tax expense can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as foliows -

Profit before tax 2,15,59,219 64,47 543
Applicable tax rate 33.06% 30.90%
Computed Tax Expense 71,28,125 19,92,291
Tax effect of :
Benefit on account of unabsorbed losses under Income Tax (98,14,246) {17,18,433)
Timing difference in respect of expenses allowed under income Tax 26,86,121 {2,73,858)
Liability under Minimum Alternate Tax 14,07,113 —
Current Tax Provision (A) 14,07,113 -
Reversal of Deferred Tax Asset on unabsorbed losses under income Tax 88, 14,2448 17,168,433
Deferred Tax Asset on items aliowed on payment basis (49,18 541 (37.327)
Deferred Tax Provision (B) 48,95,705 16,81,106
e —— R —
Tax Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss (A+B) 63,02,818 16,81.106
Effactive Tax Rate 29.23 26.07
Note 34 Earnings per equity share
Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1,62,56,401 47,686,437
Weighted average number of equity shares 36,07 480 36,07 480
Earnings per share - Basic and Dijuted 4.23 1.32

Note 35 Contingencies and Commitments
(to the extent not provided for)
1} Contingent Liabllities

Claims against the companyidisputed liabilities
not acknowiedged as Debis

Particulars 3t March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Entry Tax Matters C- 77,11,036 57,081,385
Income Tax matter under appeal in respect of TDS
deposit for AY. 2007-08 before C.LT. (A) - 271,910 271,910
Tatal — 79,82 948 80,863,275
) Guarantees given
Guarantees given by the Company
not acknowledged as debt 1,898,660 1,989,660 1,989,660
Total 1,998,660 1,99.660 1,899,660
111}y Commitments
Commitment of Capital Expenditure not provided e
for in the accounts (Estimated) 5,70,000 23,20.000 26,70,000

For The phosphate CQ. « v
Shankar Baner|e€

Company secretary
ACS-4TAT3




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ss at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs

Note 36 Employee Benefit Obligations
I} Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to defined contribution plan,
recoghized are charged off during the year as follows .

Particulars 31 March, 2016 31 March, 2017

Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund 12,63,473 10,70,396
) Defined Benefit Pian

Gratuity is paid to empioyees under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 through a recognised funded scheme.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method,

which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and

Measures each unit separately fo build up the final obfigation.

Gratuity Accumuiated Leave
Funded Unfunded
Particulars 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2017 2018 2017

() Amount recognised in the statement

of profit and loss is

Current service cost 7.13,131 6,36,325 3.89,168 1,12,146

interest cost (30,196) (1.20,341) 3,46,367 3,04,420

Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized during the year —_ — 4,66,986 1,989,906

Amount recognized in the

statement of profit and loss 6,82,935 5.15,984 12,02,521 6,116,472
(i) Changes In Present Value Obligation

Present value of defined benefit obtigation

as at the start of the 1,28,73221  1,21,33,208 45,61,000 44 53,255

Current service cost 7.13,131 6.36,325 389,168 1,12,146

Interest cost 9,880,172 8,18,836 3,46,367 3,04,420

Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized

during the year 11,75,651 10.60,971 4,656,987 1,899,508

Benefits paid (651,693} (16,76.179} {1.88,478) {5,08,727)

Present value of Defined Benefit .

Obligation as at the end of the year 1.51,80,382  1,29,73,221 55,80,048 45,61,000
{iiffChangse in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets

as at the start of the year 1.30,37,000 4,28,55,000 = —

Return on plan assets 1,29,326 1,43,941 — -

Iriterest Income 10,10,368 939,238 - -

Actuarial loss/(gain) — — - -

Contribution 17,00,000 6,75,000 —_ -

Benefits paid (6,51,693) (1B,76,179) (1.83,476) -

Fair value of plan assets

as at the end of the year 1,52,25001  1,30,37.000 — —

For The Phosphate Co. i

Shankar Banerjee

Company Secratary
ACS-45073




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Netes to Consclidated Financial Statements &s et and for the yeer ended Mmsch 31, 208

Reconciliation of present value of
delined benefit obligation and the
fair value of plan assets

Funded Status
Present value obligation
as at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets
as at the end of the year

Net liability/{(asset) recognized
in balance sheet

Amount recognised in the statement

of Other Comprehenslve Income
Actuarial Gainf(Loss) for the year on PBO
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) for the vear on Asset
Return on Plan Asset, Excluding Interest Income
Unrecognised actuarial Gain/(Loss)
at the end of the year

Breakup of Actuarial gainfloss:
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) on arising from
change in demographic assumption

Actuarial Gainf{Loss) on arising from
change in financial assumption

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on arising from
experiencge adjusirment

Assumptions
Financiai Assumptions
Discount rate p.a.
Rate of increase in salary p.a.
Demographic Assumptions
Aftriton Rate
Super Annuation Age
Average expected future service

Amount in Rs

Gratuity Accumuiated Leave

Funded Unfunded

31 March 31 March 3 March 31 March

2018 2017 2018 2017
34619 63,779 — —
1.51.80.382 1.29.73.221 56,580,046 45,61.000
1,52,25,001  1,30,37,000 — —
— — 55,80,046 45,861,000
1,682,391 (2,54 664) — —_
{13,57,942) (8,06,307) —_ —
1,268,326 143,941 — -
{10 46 225) (9,17 030) — —
1.82,391 (2,54,664) —_ —_
(13,67,942) {8.06,307) —_ -—
7.75% 7.25% T.75% 7.25%
7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
58 Years 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years
& Years B Years & Years g Years

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers.
Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic
markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions

are based on management's historical experience.

Fur tne Faoashaie €2 e

gwém B e

Shapkar Beznerice
Company bau eiary
ACS-45037 5




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements &s at and for the year ended March 31, 2018
Amount in Rs

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the define bemefit obligation are discount rate, expected
salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have determind based on reasonably possible
changes of the assumptions occuring at the endof the reporting period, while holding &l other assumptions
constant The result of sensitivity analysis is given below :

As at 31 Mareh 2018 Ag at 31st March 2017
Sensitivity analysls for Gratulty

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discourt Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 1,50,16,300 1,53,72,818 1,28,01,326 1,31,53,838
% Change Compared o base due to sensitivity -1.15% 1.20% -1.33% 1.39%
Saiary Growth {-/+ G.5%) 1,83.71.451 1,50,15996 1,31,51862 1,2801,715
% Change Compared io base due to sensitivity 1.18% -1.15% 1.38% -1.32%
Aftrition Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 1,51,93724 1,5187.040 12976075 1,29,70,367
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.02% -0.02% 0.02% -0.02%
Mortality Rate {4+ 10%;j 1.52,16,508 1,51,64,255 129987870 1,2948572
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.17% -0.17% 0.19% -0.19%

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31st March 2017
Sensltivity analysis for Accumulated Leave

Increase Decrease {hcrease Decrease
Discount Rate {-i+ 0 5%) 54 90,365 56,75,135 4482 323 46,44 466
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity -1.61% 1.70% =1.73% 1.83%
Salary Growth {-/+ 0.5%) 56,74,458 54,80,183 46,43,508 44 82,505
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 1.65% -1.61% 1.81% -1.72%
Attrition Rate (-1+ 0.5%) 55,82,278 55,77 ,814 45,62 824 45,59,176
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity —0.04% —0.04% 0.04% -0.04%
Mortalty Rate (/+ 10%} 55,92,549 55 67,543 45,741,673 45,50,327
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.22% 0.22% 0.23% —0.23%

The Sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in the assumptions woukl eccur in isclation of gne ancther as some
of the assumpticns may be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period.
Effect of plean on Entity's future Cash Fiow
Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period:

Gratuity 2017-18

The Company's best estimate of contribution during the next year 2,11,429

For The Phosphate Co. L.

Shank-- T onerige
Cotppumily - mrpty

Vo £




THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Conaclidated Finencial Statements ®a at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs
Allocation of Plan Adlocation in % of Plan
Asset (Rs.) Asset
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Funded)
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 17
Table Showing Allocation of Plan Asset H 2648 -
at the end Measurement Period
Cash & Cash Equivalents 7,03,404 12,14,730 4.62% 9.32%
Special Deposit Scheme 5,19.833 5,19,833 3.41% 3.99%
State Government Securities 82,40,090 72,71,840 54.12% 55.78%
Government of india Securities 2,01.25C 2,01,250 1.32% 1.54%
Corporate Bonds 46 50,065 34,08.315 30.54% 26.14%
Debt Becurities 2,15,000 = 1.41% —
Other 6,985,358 4,21,032 4.57% 3.23%
Total 1,52,25,000  1,30,37,000 100.00% 100.00%

Note 37 A part of Land and Buiiding thereon has been sold to the company's whoily owned subsidiary
M/s. Abhinandan Goods Pv. Uld. Execution of Conveyance Deed is panding for necessary compliance.

Note 38 The Company has preferred an appeal before High Court Kotkata against dismissai of writ petibon earher
filed by the Company Toi recovery.

Note 39 Financial instruments and other related disclosures

. Capital Management
The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of
long term and short termn goals of the Company.
The Company determines the amount of capitel required on the basis of annua! business plan coupled with
long term and short term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through cash
generated from operations and short term bank borrowings.
The debt equity ratio highlights the ability of a business to repay its debts. As at 31st March, 2018, the ratio
was 0.5236

Amount in Rs

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Equity Share Capital 3.60,74,800 3.60,74,800 3,60,74 800
Other Equity 66,01,51,570 64,59,41,3594 64,20,87,345
Total Equity (A} 69.62,26,370 68,20,18,194 67,81,62,145
Mon-Current Borrowings 10,16,52,050 10,08,34,818 11,25,47,388
Short Term Borrowings 27.62,30,640 31,05,95.118 39.71.67.576
Total Borrowings (Gross Debt) (B) 37,78,82,690 41,14,25 937 50,97, 14,962
Less: Investments {9,74,950) (5.26.686) (18,10,271)
Less. Cash and Cash Eguivalents {8,05,237) {7.55.B30) {40,58,933}
Less: Other Bank Balances {1,17,36,970) (96,17,310) {1,79,20,660!}
Net Debt (C) 36,45,65 533 40,05,30,011 48,59,25,098
Net Debt to Equity (C/A) 0.5236 0.5873 07165

For The Phosphate Co. Lid

Lhernr{lewr
Shankar Ban
Comnany 3
AL

acrotary
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Nates to Consolidated Financial Statements as st and for the year ended March 31, 2018

Amount in Rs
Disclosures on Financial Instruments
i} Financial Instruments by Category
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars Amortised Fair Vaiue Total Total Fair
Cost through PL Carrying Value
Value
Financial Assets
Investments 26,000 9,48,950 9,74,950 §,74,950
Trade Receivables 20,64,14,629 — 206414629 2064,14,629
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,05,237 — 6,085,237 6,059,237
Other Bank Balances 1.17,36,970 —_— 1.17.36.970  1,17.36,97D
Loans 46,568,033 - 45,58,033 48,58.033
Other Financial Assets 4,84,01,994 = 48401934 4,84019%4
Totai Financiai Assets 27,18,42,863 948,950 27,27,91,813 27.27.91,813
Financial Liahilities
Borrowings 36,71,87.661 — 38,71.87,B61 35,71,87.661
Trade Payables 12,21,14,076 — 1221,14,076 12.21,14076
Other Financial Liabilities 2,46,71,7/55 2,44 643 2,49,16,3868 2,44 16,398
Total Financial Liabilities 51,39,73,492 244643  51,4218,1356 51,42,18,135
As at March 31, 2017
Particulars Amartised Fair Value Total Tota! Fair
Cost through PL Carrying Value
Financial Assets
Investments 26,000 5,00,686 526,686 5,26,686
Trade Receivables 22,73,05751 — 227305751 227305751
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7.55,930 — 7,585,830 7,55.930
Other Bank Batances 96,17.310 —_ 96,17.310 98 17,310
Loans 47.08,249 — 47,08,249 47.08,249
Cther Financia! Assets 4,68,99,727 = 468.99,727 468,899,727
Total Financial Assets 28,93,12,967 500686 28,98,13653 28,98,13,653
Financial Liabllities
Borrowings 39,37,96,443 — 39.37.86 443 39,37,65,443
Trade Payables 10,15,50,419 —  10,15.50,419 10,15,50,419
Other Financial Liabilities 3,12,76,480 (8,39,945) 3,04,36535 3,04,36,535
Total Financial Liabilities 52.66,23,342 {8,39,945) 52,57 83,397 52,57,83,3987

o The Phosphate Co. L.

‘51! KC'-G Bowvryes?
Shankar Banerjee
Comppnts Gapeatany
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notss fo Consolidated Finencial Statements as &t and for the year ended March 31, 2018

As at April 0%, 2016 Amount in Rs
Particulars Amortised Fair Value Tetai Total Fair
Cest  through PL Carrying Value
Value
Financial Assets
Investments 26,000 17.84 274 18,10,271 18,10,271
Trade Recelvables 30,61,19,874 — 30,61,19,874 30,61,19,874
Cash and Cash Equivalents 40,58,933 — 40,58,933 40,58,933
Other Bank Balances 1,79,20,660 — 1,79,20,660 1,79,20660
Loans 48,61,479 — 48.61,479 48,61,479
Other Fimancial Assets 5,29.04,025 - 5,29.04.026 529,04,025
Total Financial Assets 38,58,80,972 17.84,271 38,76,75,242 3876,75,242
Financial Liabitities
Borrowings 48,62,75,421 — 486275421 48,62,75421
Trade Payables 15,33,38,927 — 1533,38,927 15,33,38,927
Other Financiail Liabilities 3,68,68,573 65,54,600 4,3423173 43423173
Total Financial Liabities 67,64,82,821 65,64,600 68,30,37 521 68,30,37.521

{{Iy Falr value hierarchy
All Financial Assets & Financial Liabilites are carried at amortised cost except Current Investments and Foreign
Currency Future Contracts, which have been fair valued.
Leve!l 1 — Quoted (adjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
15 directly or indirectly observabie.
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable,
The following table represents the fair value heierarchy of Financial Assets and Financlal Liabilites measured
at Fair Value on a recurring basis :

Particulars Fair Value 31 March 31 March 1 April

Hierarchy 2018 2017 2016
Lewvel

Financial Assets

Current Investments Level 1 9,48,950 500,686 17,84 ,271
Derivative financial instruments -
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts Level 2 2,44 643 (8.39,945) 65,54,600

(iif) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Flnancia! risk factors
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, liquidity risk & credit risk which
may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company's focus is to foresee the
unpredictabiity of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

{A) Market risk
Market risk comprises interest rate risk & foreign currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and berrowings in foreign currencies
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

(a) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the Company borrow funds both at fixed and floating
interest rates. The sisk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and
floating rate borrowings and by the use of interest rate swap contracts. The Company's exposure to the
riek of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on average floating rate habilities outstanding
as on begining and end of the reporting period. A 50 basis points increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higherflower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company's loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 would decreaselincrease by Rs 19.37,920 lakhs (for
the year ended March 31, 2017. decrease/ increase by Rs 22 64 538)

{b) Forelgh currency risks
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exchange rate risk exposure is primarily
due to trade payables denominated in foreign currency. The Company is resricting its exposure of risk in
change in exchange rates by way of Forward/Future Contracts.

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2817 1 April 2018
Foreign Currency Payable
{Amount in USD) 16,13,693 9,568,066 23,47 458

(B} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of
liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as
per reguirements.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund baséed working capital facilities from various banks. The
Company invests e surplus funds n bank fixed deposit and mutual funds, which carry low market nsk.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
One Year or iess

Borrowings 26,55.35611 29,29,61,625 37,37,28,035
Trade Payables 12,21,14,075 10,15,50,419 15,33,38,927
Gther Fihancial Liabilites 1,24,41,642 1,78,62,772 3,08,55,230
More than One Year

Borrowings 10,16,52,050 10,08,34,818 11,25,47 386
Trade Payables — -—_ _
Other Financial Liabiites 12474756 1.26,73,763 1,25,87,943

{C) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arsing from counter-party failure to repay or service debt acgording
to the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of defauit and the rnsk
of deterioration of creditworthiness.

Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk principally consist of Trade Receivables, Loans
Receivables, Investments, Cashk and Cash Equivalents and Financiai Guarantees provided by the Company.
None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consoiidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018

The Company has a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter parties as a means of mitigating the risk

of financial loss from defautts. The Company manages risks through credit approvais, establishing credit limits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal
course of business.

Note 40 Related Party Disclosures:
List of Related Parties :

1. Key Management Personnel

Shri Suresh Kumar Bangur Executive Director & CEO
Shri Ajay Bangur President & CFO
Snri Shankar Banerjee Company Secretary

2. Directors

Shri Bined Khaitan Non Executive Director
Shri Hemant Bangur Non Executive Director
Shri Dilip P Gocuidas Independent Director
Smi. Vijaya Mohan independent Director

3. Entlities over which Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives have significant
influence

Art Finance & Trade Pvt Ltd
Credwyn Holdings india Pvt Ltd
Gloster Limited

Devendra Finvest & Holding Pvt Ltd
Joonktolle Tea & Industries Ltd
Kanchan Udyog Lid

Kettleweil Bullen & Co. Ltd
Kherapati Vanijya Lid

POGD investments & Trading Private Lid
Chintamani Holdings Pvt Ltd

Mani Invest Brokers Pvt Ltd
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Conaolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018
The following table summarises related-party transactions included in the financial statements for

the year ended March 31, 2018 & March 31, 2017 and details of outstanding balances as on March
31, 2018, March 31, 2017 & April 1, 2016.

Amount in Rs.
Nature of Transactions Key Entities Totat

Managerial where

Personnel Directors

& Other KMPs and

Directors relatives have

{1+2) significant

influence (3}
Salary and Other Benefits 49 20,108 - 45 20,108
37.66,012 —_ 37,686,012

Contribution to Provident Fund

& Superannuation Policy 12,64,404 — 12,64,404
9.60.813 — 8,60513
Other Perquisites 16,38,015 —_ 16,38,015
12,54.298 12, 54,298
Meeting Fees 4,25,000 - 4,25,000
1,600,000 = 1,680,000
interest Payment —_ 3,57,07,008 3,57,07,008
- 3,22,31,652 322 31.652
Loan Taken — 20,12,75,000 | 20,12,75,000
— 5,08,00,000 5,08,00.000
Loan Repaid — 24,38,00,000 | 24,38,00,00C
— 8 54,560,000 8,54.50,000
Qutstanding Payable — 1647 82773 | 18,4782 773
— 20.04.45599 | 20,04,45,599
— 23,31,71.627 | 23.31,71.627

Note . 41
First-Time Adoption of Ind-AS

These consolidated financial statements of The Phosphate Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018
have been prepared in accordance with ind AS. For the purposes of transition to Ind AS, the Group has followed
the gurdance prescribed in ind AS 101-First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, with April 1, 2018 as
the trangition date and IGAAFP as the previous GAAP.

The transition 10 In@ AS nas resulted in ghanges in the presentation of the financial statements. disclosures in
the notes therete and accounting policies and principles. The accounting policies set out m Note 2 have been
applied in preparing the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and the comparative
tnformation. An explanatron of how the transitton from prevrous GAAPR to Ing AS has affected the Company's
Consclidaled Balance Sheel, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, is sel oul in note 41(2) and 41(3).
Exemptions on first time adoption of Ind AS avalled in accordance with ind AS 101 have been set out in note
41(1)
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at end for the year ended March 31, 2018

1.

Exemptions availed on first time adoption of Ind-AS 101

Ind AS 101 allows first time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Group has applied following exemptions in the financial statements:

i)

i)

in accerdance with ind AS 101, the Greup has elected not to restate business combmations that occurred
before the date of transition i e 1st April 2016 In view of the same the Indian GAAP carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised under Ind AS, is their deemed cost at the
date of the acquisiton. After the date of the acquisition, measurement is in accardance with respective
Ind AS.

In accordance with ind AS 101, the Holding Company has elected to continue with the carrying values
under previous GAAP as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. 1st April 2016 for all the items of property,
plant and equipment, except freghold land.

Further, the Hoiding Company had considered fair value of freehold land based on professionai valuation
as gt 1st Aprit 2016 Accordingly, camying vatue of land is increased by Rs 11,30,98,067 On transition,
such increase in value alongwith balance lying in revaluation reserve has been adjusted in general
reserve.

Further Subsidiary Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP as
deemed cost at the transition date i.e. 1st April 2016 for all the items of property, plant and equipment.

For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018
Note 41 First-Tima Adoption of Ind-AS

2. Recoaciliation of equity as at date of transition Amount in Rs
Particulars Note 1st April, 2016 3fst March, 2017
iGAAP Adjustmants Ind AS Indian GAAP Adustments Ind AS
Asgels

Non-current assels
al  Property plant

and equipmeni 1 f106E6330 11 2096.057 82,37,64.407 f0.32.96,165 11.3086.067 MBI
b} Capital work in-
prograss 479499 — 4794899 57,1456 — LTATE:
t) Financial assels
1} Irvastments 2 200 6000 26000 kelii] {6000 26000
10 Leans 48 28 479 — 48 28,479 46 61 249 - 46,61,249
d)  Dsferred tax assels
[nefy 11071 468 - 11071 458 93 90 %2 — 93,980,352
I 11.30,92 067 B4.01,59843 723084 362 130 92 067 BIB1 BR 429
Current assels
al lnventories 162967172 — 16,2067, 172 9,79 50,785 — 97950765
b} Financial assels
1] Invesimants 3 14,85.392 2,98 878 17 84 270 500 000 606 500 686
u}  Trade receivables 306119874 - 30 6119874 22730651 - 27306751
1) Cash and Cash
oquivalents 405893 - 05953 715%.9% - 756550
wj  Giher Bank
Ratances A Beals sl - 1 7920 6E0 b i A o] - 98 17310
v} Loans 00 — 33,000 47,000 — 47,000
vi)y Olher Financial
Assels 5,29.04,025 = 52904025 46895727 - 46895727
¢} Current 1ax asset {Nel} 13,08.783 - 13,08793 2,56 216 - 256 216
d  Other curreni assets 62,563,689 — 62,63 699 80,86 570 - 80.86,670
5530651 549 298878 55 I3 427 30 14, 19260 3] K REREE:
Total Assets 12801 %16 RO Y4E 1M RN I 141 4513631 A 7R 12076 06 304
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
al Equiy Share capital 360,74.800 - 360,74,800 3,60,74,800 — 360,74 800
b}  Othet equity 182 52,86,96,400 11.33,80,945 64,2087.345 53,28,48.641 11 3092753 64 5941 14

Tolal Equily atinbutable
to equity shareholders
of the company 56.47.74.200 H 330545 67 B3 62 145 56,8023.441 11052753 58.20.16.194
Liabilities

Non-current jlabilities
4] Frnancial yabithes

i} Borrowings 11 25 47 386 — 11,2547 386 10,08,34.818 — | 100834318

u)  Gthei financial
ltatulities 12567943 - 1,25 67 943 12573763 — 12573783
o]  Provisions 44 53,255 — 44 53 255 24 77.360 = 24,77 350
12,95,68 584 - 12.95,68,584 11 58 85 931 —| 11588593

Gurrant lisbilities
a) Frrancial habihhias

1] Borrowings 7 BB - TIix0m: 22961625 -- 202661625
1} [lrade payables 153338 927 - 15,33 38 927 1015 50,418 — | 101550415
i} Clher financial
liabililies 30856230 — 3,08,56 230 1,78,62 772 - 1.7862.772
b)  Other current liabiities 27877349 = 278.77.349 16245793 — 15245793
t] Provisions - - - 20 B3 650 — 20 83,650
HART 99 541 - 5457 99 541 47297 (4 59 - 4297 04 29
Toted Equity and liebilities 1.2801,38,326 1,33,90945 139336270 1 11.46.13631 11308273 | 1.227606.384
%ph,&(?\\ For The Phosphate Co. Ltd.
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consclidated Finencial Statemente as =i and for the year endsd March 31, 2018

Notes

1. Under IGAAP, the fixed assels were measured al cost
in the increase in the cattying value of Property Plant

2 Transachor cost has been recognised from the cost of the Investment.

3 Under previous GAAP, current Investments ware slated at lower of ¢
as fair value through profit or Joss on the dats of Iransition and fair

loss.

in accordance with ind AS 1
& Equipment.

01, the company has larr vaiued its free hold lang resulling

ast and fair value, under ind AS, these finandial assets have baan classified
value changes after the date of transition has been recegnised in profit or

3. Reconciliation Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under IGAAP to IND AS

Amount in Rs
Particutars Note For the Year ended 31 March 2017
Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from aperations 4 68,33,38,925 {5,28,04,838) |63,03,54,089
Other Income 5 38,92172 {2,98,192) 36,93, 080
i Total income 68.73,31,097 ) (5,32,83,028) | 632,40,48.069
Cost of Material Consumed 28,27,07 415 — {28,27,07,415
Cost of Trading Goods §,26,28,918 — §,26,28,918
(Increase}/Decrease of Finished Goods 2,25,99,221 — 2,25,99,221
Excise duty on Sale of Goods 4 —_ 39.61,518 39,61,518
Employee benefit expenses § 2,55 69,029 (9,17,030) 2,47 51 999
Other expenses 4 21,07,88,233 (5,69,46,354) 15,38,41,879
Total Expenses before Interest, Depreciation 60,43,92,816 | (5,39,01,868) 55,04,90 950
and amortisaticn
Finance Cast 6,71,74 856 — 6,71,74,656
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 99 34,920 - 99,34 920
1 Total Expenses 88,15,02,392 1 (5,38,01,888) 62,76,00,528
Il Profitf{loss) before tax - 58,28,705 6,148,838 64,47 543
IV Tax expense:
{1} Current tax = = =3
{2) Deferred tax 16,81,106 - 16,81,106
V' Profitf{loss) for the period (IlI-1V) 41,47 599 6,18,838 47 66,437
Other Comprehensive Income
VI Hems that will not be classified to statement of
Profit or Loss —_ - -
VIl Remeasurements of the defined benefit
liabilities/(asset) 8 -~ {8,17.030) {9,17,030)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 41,47,599 (2,98,192) 38,49 407
Notes

4. Under Ind AS, revenue from sales of

5. Under Ind AS, mutual funds are valued at fair value instead of cost.

6. Under Ind AS, Acturial Gain/Loss on Gratuit

Loss.

goods is inclusive of excise duty and are net of sales tax, discounts.

¥ routed through Other Comprehensive Income instead of Profit &
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THE PHOSPHATE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the ysar endad March 31, 2018

Note 42
Additional Information for the year ended 31st March 2018
Name of 1he Entity Net Assals, 1 e Sharg Share in Othet Share in Total
Tolal Assets minus in Profit Comprehensive Comprehonsive
Tolal Liabuliies INCOMe incame

As a% Amount Asa% Amount Asd % Amourt As a% Amocrt

uf Cons, in Rs of Cos i Fs of Gons £ Rs, of Coma n Rs
Parent :
The Phosphate Company Limied 93 59% BBAGBOTT | 10077% | 1537343 100 00% (10,46 285) 100 B2% 14327 207
Subsidiary :
Abhimandan Goods Private Limited B41% 4,46.06 293 -0 7% (117631 0 00% - -3 82% {1.17.031}
Total - W% MBR232370 100% 1 52 56 401 100% {10 4G 225) 100% 14210176
Note 43

Coresponcding campataive figures for ihe previous year have boen regrouped and readusted wherever considered necessary ke conform 1o the curient year presentation

As per our report of even date attached

For, 8. K. Agrawal & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 306033€
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Partnar

Mambership No 068851
Place: Koikata
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For end on behalf of the Board of Drectors

Binod Khaltan
Director
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